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FOREWORD BY THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 
Introduction 
The current period of austerity has presented significant financial challenges to the Comhairle in recent years but good 
forward planning and effective financial management mean that the Comhairle’s financial position remains stable. 
 
Financial Performance 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 the Comhairle’s accounts show a reduction of £4.0m on the General Fund balance. 
However, £8.9m of this was due to the planned use of revenue to fund capital expenditure and taking this into account the 
revenue outturn was a surplus of £4.9m compared with a budgeted deficit of £216k. The main reasons for the £5.1m 
variation from the planned budget are shown in the chart below. 

  

The only area of significant overspend during the year was in Health and Social Care and was due to an increased demand 
for Home Care services. The table below shows the budget and out turn for each of the Comhairle’s service committees. 

 
The consequence of the overall deficit of £4.0m was a reduction in General Fund balances from £22.8m to £18.8m. 
However, as this reflected the planned use revenue balances to fund capital expenditure the level of committed balances 
has reduced and the level of uncommitted balances has increased.  
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The table below provides a breakdown of the Comhairle’s committed balances. The biggest changes have been in the 
application of balances from the Western Isles Schools Project (WISP) as the project is concluded and the use of Housing 
Resouces to fund the new Shared Temporary Accommodation unit in Stornoway. 

£’000  £’000 
Western Isles Schools Project 1,580 European Projects Carry Forward 608 
Department Carry Forwards 1,702  Education Projects/VERs 1,075 
Housing Related Payments 1,100 Welfare Reform 360 
Provision for Auto Enrolment 550 Revenue Support for Capital 366 
WISP Lifecycle Fund 733 Loans Fund Dept. Re-profiling 403 
Winter Maintenance 711 Miscellaneous 1,877 

Total 11,065

Trading Operations  
The Comhairle operates a number of trading operations, none of which are classified as significant in terms of the Local 
Government Scotland Act 2003.   

Overall, Trading Operations (TOs) returned a net surplus of £76k, with the main maintenance and cleansing operations all 
achieving targets. The Fuel at Fishery Piers service and the Kallin Ice Plant both made small deficits, as did Bus na 
Comhairle, the latter being due to the additional costs associated with the replacement of vehicles. The catering contracts 
in the Comhairle offices, Sports Centre and the Library have returned deficits, which the departments have been able to 
meet through savings in other areas. Management continue to review costs and service levels and look for ways to 
increase income, to return these contracts to a break even position.  

Note 25, on page 56 of the Accounts, provides a breakdown of the financial performance of each Trading Operation. 

Revenue Funding 
The Comhairle’s revenue budget is financed through General Revenue Grant from the Scottish Government, together with 
Non-Domestic Rates and Council Tax, as detailed in the Income Accounts on page 64 of the Accounts.  

Capital Expenditure  
The Comhairle spent £22m on capital projects in 2013/14. This was financed through a combination of capital grants, 
revenue, capital funds and internal borrowing as detailed in Note 32 and illustrated below 

Major projects progressed during the year included the replacement of the Harris House care home, the new Shared 
Temporary Accommodation in Stornoway, the design of a replacement for Ardseileach, Phase 2 of the Lews Castle and 
Museum project, major road schemes at Kyles Lodge to Leverburgh, Kildonan Junction to Loch Roinich, and Tong to 
Gearraidh Ghuirm, Road Strengthening and Surface Dressing throughout the islands, design and tendering work was 
undertaken for coast protection work at Balvanich and work on the new harbour at Ardveenish. 

Performance against Prudential Framework Indicators  
The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities allows greater local flexibility for investment decisions that are 
informed and supported by a suite of performance indicators.  The indicators for 2013/14 were approved by the Policy and 
Resources Committee on 28 March 2013.  The indicators are designed to ensure that capital investment is prudent, 
affordable and financially sustainable. The indicators are lower than estimated as a consequence of an under-spend in the 
risk element of the Western Isles Schools Project and the application of revenue resources to fund capital expenditure. The 
key performance indicators are: 
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1. Capital Expenditure: this indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed investment in capital assets
remains within sustainable limits.

2. Capital Financing Requirement: this indicator measures the underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose.  In
order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for a capital purpose, net external borrowing
does not, except in the short term, exceed the Capital Financing Requirement in the preceding year plus the
estimates of any additional CFR for the current and next two financial years.

3. Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit for external borrowing: under the Prudential Code, limits are
required to be set in order to keep borrowing within an affordable range.  These limits are referred to as the
Operational Boundary and the Authorised Limit. The outturn figure reflects the actual sum borrowed which was
contained within both the operational boundary and the authorised limit confirming that the Comhairle’s external
borrowing continues to be undertaken only to support planned capital investment activities.

4. Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream: this is an indicator of affordability and demonstrates the
revenue implications of capital investment decisions by highlighting the proportion of the revenue budget required
to meet the borrowing costs associated with capital spending.

Prudential Indicator 
Estimate  
2013/14 

£k 

Outturn 
2013/14 

     £k 
General Fund Net Capital Expenditure  15,647     1,378 
Capital Financing Requirement 174,000 157,239 

External Debt at 31 March 152,564 

Operational Boundary 164,000 

Authorised Boundary 169,000 

General Fund Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream        9.50%      8.94% 

Balance Sheet  
The Balance Sheet gives details of the assets and liabilities and shows that net assets have decreased by £10m over the 
year.  Although expenditure in excess of £22m was incurred on fixed assets, the effect of depreciation and revaluation 
means that the value of these assets has only increased by £4m, from £290m to £294m. There is a net increase of £5m in 
working capital, while the pension liability has increased by £20m to £84m. 

The pension liability represents the best estimate of the current value of pension benefits that will have to be funded by the 
Comhairle and relates to benefits earned by existing or previous employees up to 31 March 2014.  These benefits are 
expressed in current value terms rather than the cash that will actually have to be paid out.  This is to allow for the time 
value of money, whereby the value of cash now is regarded as higher than cash received in the future. There has been a 
significant increase in the level of liability from the previous year, due to the effect of unfavourable financial assumptions. 

Borrowing 
There was no new borrowing undertaken during the year. Internal resources were used to fund capital expenditure and 
loan maturity.  

Group Accounts 
The Accounting Code of Practice requires group accounts to be prepared where the authority has a material interest in 
another organisation.  The Comhairle’s representation on the Highland and Western Isles Joint Valuation Board is 
therefore reflected in the group accounts. The prior year comparative figures include the Comhairle’s representation on the 
Police and Fire Joint Boards which have now transferred to the Single Public Authorities. 

The results of Sgoiltean Ùra LLP, an arms-length limited liability partnership responsible for the management of the design, 
construction, facilities management and lifecycle maintenance of the Western Isles Schools Project, have also been 
included.  The LLP is a partnership between the Comhairle and Sgoiltean Ùra Investments Ltd, a company limited by 
shares having the Comhairle as its sole shareholder.  The LLP is therefore wholly owned by the Comhairle although 
existing as a separate legal entity. 

The effect of inclusion of these entities in the Group Balance Sheet is to reduce the net worth by £1m, representing the 
Comhairle’s share of the net liabilities of these entities, mainly the pension position of the Valuation Joint Board. 

Financial Statements
The Financial Statements of the Comhairle and its Group for 2013/14, which have been completed in accordance with 
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/14, are set out on pages 27-79. 

Statement of Responsibilities for the Annual Accounts 
This Statement sets out the respective responsibilities of the Comhairle and the Director of Finance and Corporate 
Resources for the financial statements. 

Annual Governance Statement of Assurance 
This statement sets out the framework within which financial control is managed and reviewed over the main components 
of the system, including the arrangements for Internal Audit. 
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Remuneration Report 
This report outlines the Comhairle’s remuneration policies for senior officers and senior elected members, and also 
provides detailed information on amounts paid and the pension benefits received by these officers and members. 

The Financial Statements 

 Movement in Reserves Statement – shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the
Comhairle, analysed into “usable reserves” (those that can be used to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation)
and “unusable reserves”.  The Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services line shows the true cost of providing
services.  These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for
Council Tax setting.

 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – shows the accounting cost in the year of continuing
operations in accordance with international financial reporting standards (IFRS), rather than the amount to be
funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulation, which may be
different from accounting cost.  The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

 Balance Sheet – shows the value of the Comhairle’s assets and liabilities.  The net assets (assets less liabilities)
are matched by the reserves held.  Reserves are reported in two categories.  The first category of reserves are
usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Comhairle may use to provide services, subject to the need to
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts
Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt).  The second category of reserves is
those that the Comhairle is not able to use to provide services.  This category of reserves includes reserves that
hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become
available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the
Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations’.

 Cash Flow Statement - shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents during the reporting period.  The
statement shows how the Comhairle generates and uses these resources by classifying them as operating,
investing or financing activities.  The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of
the extent to which the Comhairle’s operations are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from service
users.  Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources used in the
delivery of services.  Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful indicators of borrowing requirements.

 Income Accounts - show the gross and net income derived from Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates and the
contribution to the national pool for non-domestic rates and the distribution from the pool to the Comhairle.

 Group Accounts - which incorporate the Valuation Joint Board (Police and Fire Boards included in previous
years but these have now transferred to the single national organisations) as an associate and Sgoiltean Ùra LLP
as a subsidiary, show the overall financial position of the Comhairle.

Economic Outlook 

The Comhairle agreed its overall Budget Strategy for the period 2015-18 at its meeting on 23 April 2014. Whilst the 
settlement for 2015/16 is now known, the uncertainty associated with the Independence Referendum and the 2015 
Westminster elections and subsequent UK spending review means that financial projections for future years are harder to 
estimate. The chart below sets out the possible range of savings that the Comhairle could face over the period to 2022. 

These projections include provision for the additional costs of elderly care which is currently estimated to require £2.6m of 
additional funding over this time. £1.1m of this could potentially be funded by the projected reduction in pupil numbers over 
the same period. 
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RO-RÀDH LE STIÙIRICHE IONMHAS AGUS STÒRAS CORPORRA 
Ro-ràdh 

Tha an àm seo le teannachadh ionmhais air dùhlain sònraichte a thoirt dhan Chomhairle  ach le deagh dhealbhadh agus 
rianachd ionmhais èifeachdach tha suidheachadh ionmhais na Comhairle air fuireach seasmhach. 

Dèanadas Ionmhais 
Gu deireadh bliadhna aig 31 Màrt 2014 tha cunntasan na Comhairle a’ nochdadh lùghdachadh de £4.0m air na tha air 
fhàgail sa Mhaoin Choitchinn.  Ach, bha dùil £8.9m den mhaoin a chleachdadh airson cosgais calpa agus a’ gabhail aire 
den seo, aig a’ cheann thall bha còrr de £4.9m sa Mhaoin an coimeas ris a’ chus cosgais £216k a bha sa bhuidseat. Tha 
na prìomh adhbhair airson an atharrachadh bhon bhuidseat dealbhaichte air an sealltainn sa chlàr a leanas. 

Bha aon cuibhreann far an robh cosgais sònraichte a bharrachd sa bhliadhna ann an Slàinte agus Cùram Sòisealachd, air 
sgàth meudachadh iarrtais airson an t-seirbheis. Chithear am buidseat sa chlàr a leanas agus mar a chaidh a chosg le 
comataidh sheirbheis na Comhairle.  

Mar thoradh air an easbhaidh de £4.0m thànaig lughdachadh air na th’ air fhàgail sa Mhaoin Choitchinn bho £22.8m gu 
£18.8m. Ach, air sgàth `s gu bheil seo a’ soillseachadh mar a chaidh airgead bhliadhnail a chleachdadh airson cosgais 
calpa tha an ìre de dh’airgead geallta air lughdachadh agus an ìre de dh’airgead nach eil geallta air èirigh.  
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Tha an Clàr gu h-ìosail a’ mìneachadh suidheachadh le airgead geallta na Comhairle. Tha na h-atharrachaidhean as 
motha a thaobh còrr-airgead Pròiseact Sgoiltean nan Eilean Siar gan cuir an sàs oir tha am pròiseact air a thighinn gu 
ceann agus cleachdadh Stòras Taigheadas airson Ionad Ùr Co-dhachaigh Tamaill ann an Steòrnabhagh. 
 

 £’000   £’000 
Pròiseact Sgoiltean nan Eilean 
Siar 

1,580  A’ toirt air adhart Maoin 
Pròiseactan Eòrpach  

608 

Roinn  1,702  Pròiseactan Foghlaim/VERs 1,075 
Pàighidhean gu Taigheadais 1,100  Ath-leasachadh Sochair 360 
Ullachadh airson Fèin Chlàraidh  550  Revenue Support for Capital 366 
Maoin Cuairt-bheatha WISP  733  Loans Fund Dept. Re-profiling 403 
Glèidheadh Geamhraidh 711  Miscellaneous 1,877 
   Total 11,065 

 
Obraichean Malairt  
Tha a’ Chomhairle ag obair grunn de dh’obraichean malairt.  Gu ruige seo bhàtar a meas Glèidheadh Thogalaichean 
sònraichte ann an dàimh ri Achd Ùghdarras Ionadail Alba 2003.   
 
Gu h-iomlan, thill Obraichean Malairt còrr de £76k, le obraichean glanaidh agus glèidhidh gu lèir a’ coileanadh an targaid. 
Bha call beag aig seirbheis Connadh aig Cidhichean Iasgach agus Ionad Deighe nan Ceallan, agus aig Bus na Comhairle 
air sgàth `s gun deach carbadan ùra a cheannach.  Bha call cuideachd ann an cunnraidhean a’ bhidhe, An Ionad Spòrs 
agus an Leabharlann, agus chaidh aig na roinnean air coinneachadh ris tro shàbhaladh ann an àiteachan eile.  Tha 
Rianachd a cumail sùil air cosgais agus ìrean sheirbheis agus a’ lorg dòighean air teach-a-steach a mheudachadh, gus an 
rig na cunnraidhean a-steach cothromach.  
 
Tha nòta 25, air duilleag 48 de na Cunntasan, a’ toirt mion-chunntas air dèanadas ionmhais gach Obair Malairt.  
 
Airgead Bhliadhnail  
Tha buidseat bliadhnail na Comhairle air a mhaoineachadh tro Thabhartas Bliadhnail Coitcheann bho Riaghaltas na h-
Alba, còmhla ri cìsean Neo-thaigheadais agus a’ Chìs Chomhairle, mar a tha mìnichte anns na Cunntasan Teachd-a-
steach air duilleag 64 de na Cunntasan.  
 
Cosgais Calpa  
Chosg a’ Chomhairle £22m air pròiseactan calpa ann an 2013/14. Fhuair ionmhais airson tro mheasgachadh de 
thabhartasan calpa, airgead bliadhnail, maoin calpa agus iasadan, mar a tha mìnichte ann an Nota 32 agus an clàr gu h-
ìosal.  

 
 
Rinneadh adhartas le pròiseactan mòra rè na bliadhna le dachaigh cùraim Taigh Na Hearadh, Àite-fuirich Tamaill Co-
roinnte ann an Steòrnabhagh, dealbhadh àite ùr airson Àrdseileach, Ìre 2 de phròiseact Museum agus Tasglann Caisteal 
Leòdhais, sgeama prìomh rathaidean aig Loidse Chaolas na Hearadh chun Òb, Ceann-rathad Chill Donnain Loch Roinich, 
agus Tunga gu Gearraidh Ghuirm, Neartachadh Rathaidean agus Uachdar Ùr air Rathaidean air feadh nan eilean, obair 
dealbhaidh agus tagradh air a ghabhail os làimh airson onair dìon an oirthir aig Baile a’ Mhanaich agus obair aig caladh ùr 
Àird Mhidhinis.  
 
Dèanadas an aghaidh Comharran Frèam-obrach Ciallach  
Tha Còd Ciallach airson Ionmhas Calpa do dh’Ùghdarrasan Ionadail a’ toirt cothrom airson barrachd sùbailteachd a-thaobh 
co-dhùnaidhean in-thasgaidh a ghabhar leis an fhiosrachadh agus an taic a tha a’ tighinn bho raon de chomharran 
dèanadais.  Chaidh na comharran airson 2012/13 an aontachadh le Comataidh Poileasaidh agus Stòras air 8 Màrt 2012.  
Tha na comharran air an dealbh gu dèanamh cinnteach gu bheil in-thasgadh calpa ciallach, aig cosgais so-ruigsinneach 
agus seasmhach a thaobh ionmhas. `S iad na leanas na prìomh chomharran dèanadais:  
 

1. Cosgais Calpa: tha an comharra seo stèidhichte gu dearbhadh gu bheil an ìre de dh’in-thasgadh tairgste airson 
so-mhaoin calpa a’ fuireach an taobh-staigh crìochan seasmhach. 
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2. Iarrtas Maoineachadh Calpa: tha an comharra seo a’ tomhais an fheum bunaiteach air iasad a tharraing mu
choinneimh adhbhar calpa.  Gus dearbhadh gur ann a mhàin airson adhbhar calpa a thogte iasad san teirm
mheadhanaich, chan bhi suim iasadan, ach a mhàin sa gheàrr-ùine, nas àirde na bha Feum Iarrtas Calpa sa
bhliadhna roimhe an cois tuairmsean FIC a bharrachd anns a’ bhliadhna gnàthaichte no anns an dà bhliadhna
ionmhais ri teachd.

3. Crìochan Obraich agus an Ìre Ùghdarraichte airson iasadan a thogail:  fon Chòd Ciallach, feumar ìrean a
stèidheachadh gu iasadan a chumail taobh-staigh cosgais reusanta.  Canar Crìochan Obraich agus Ìre
Ùghdarraichte ri na cuingealachaidhean sin. Tha an suim a’ foillseachadh an fhìor shuim a chaidh a thoirt air
iasad a bha an dà chuid anns a’ chrìoch obrach agus ìre ùghdarraichte a’ daingneachadh gu bheil a’ Chomhairle
a’ leantainn le bhith a’ togail iasaid a-mhàin gu taic a thoirt do ghnìomhan calpa dealbhte.

4. Co-mheas cosgais ionmhais gu sruth airgead bhliadhnail: `s e comharra air so-ruigsinneachd a tha seo agus
a’ nochdadh a’ bhuaidh bhliadhnail air co-dhùnaidhean in-thasgaidh calpa le bhith a’ soilleireachadh an
cuibhreann den bhuidseat bhliadhnail a dh’fheumar airson coinneachadh ri cosgais iasadan co-cheangailte ri
cosgais calpa.

Comharra Faiceallach 
Tuairmse 
2013/14 

£k 

Cosgais 
2013/14 

     £k 
Cosgais Calpa Iomlan a’ Mhaoin Choitchinn  15,647     1,378 
Feum Ionmhas Calpa  174,000 157,239 

Fiachan aig 31 Màrt  152,564 

Crìoch Obraich  164,000 

Ìre Ùghdarraichte 169,000 
Cuibhreann a’ Mhaoin Choitchinn air Cosgais Sruth Airgead 
Bhliadhnail  

       9.50%      8.94% 

Duilleag Cothromachaidh 
Tha an Duilleag Cothromachaidh a’ toirt mion-chunntas air so-mhaoin agus do-mhaoin agus a’ sealltainn gu bheil an so-
mhaoin air a dhol sìos mu £10m thairis a’ bhliadhna. Ged a chaidh còrr air £22m a chosg air so-mhaoin, tha buaidh 
lughdachadh luach agus ath-mheasadh air luach a’ ciallachadh gun do thuit luach an so-mhaoin bho £290m gu £294m. 
Tha cosgais airgead calpa an dèidh gach lùghdachadh sìos mu £4m, aig an aon àm tha fiachanas nam peinnsein air 
àrdachadh bho £20m to £84m. 

Tha so-mhaoin a’ pheinnsein a’ riochdachadh an tuairmse as fheàrr de luach gnàthaichte sochairean peinnsein ris am 
feum a’ Chomhairle coinneachadh agus tha e co-cheangailte ri na sochairean air an cosnadh le luchd-obrach gnàthaichte 
no feadhainn a bha a’ faighinn cosnadh aig a’ Chomhairle suas gu 31 Màrt 2014.  Tha na sochairean sin air an aithris ann 
an teirmean luach gnàthaichte an àite an airgead a thèid a phàigheadh a-mach aig a’ cheann thall.  Tha seo gu riarachadh 
luach ùine an airgid, oir thàtar a meas luach airgid an dràsta a bhith nas àirde nan airgead a gheibhear san àm ri teachd. 

Iasadachd 
Cha deach iasad as ùr a thogail rè na bliadhna. Chaidh in-stòrais a chleachdadh gu coinneachadh ri cosgais calpa agus 
pàigheadh iasadan a’ tighinn gu ceann. 

Cunntasan Bhuidhne  
Tha Còd Modhan Cunntasachd ag iarraidh gun tèid cunntasan bhuidhnean an ullachadh far a bheil ùidh ionmhais aig an 
ùghdarras ann am buidheann eile.  Mar sin tha riochdachadh na Comhairle air Co-bhòrd Measaidh a’ Ghàidhealtachd `s 
nan Eilean air fhoillseachadh ann an cunntasan a’ bhuidhinn.  Tha àireamhan coimeas ris a’ bhliadhna roimhe a’ gabhail a-
steach riochdachadh na Comhairle air Co-bhùird na Poilis is: Luchd-smàlaidh a tha a-nis air gluasad gu Ughdarrasan 
Singilte Phoblach. 

Chaidh cuideachd a chur ri seo toradh Sgoiltean Ùra LLP, compàirteachas aig astar le do-mhaoin cuibhrichte a tha an urra 
ri rianadh an dealbhadh, togail, rianadh ghoireasan agus gleidheadh cuairt beatha Pròiseact Sgoiltean nan Eilean Siar. `S 
e compàirteachas a th’ann an LLP eadar a’ Chomhairle agus In-thasgaidhean Sgoiltean Ùra Earr, companaidh cuibhrichte 
le roinnean agus gach roinn fo seilbh na Comhairle.   Le sin dheth `s ann leis a’ Chomhairle a tha LLP ged a tha e mar 
bhuidheann laghail air leth. 

Ann a bhith a’ cur na buidhnean sin air Duilleag Cothromachaidh Buidhnean, tha luach air a lughdachadh le £1m, sin a’ 
riochdachadh cuibhreann na Comhairle de do-mhaoin na buidhnean, gu sònraichte suidheachadh peinsein Co-bhòrd 
Measaidh.   

Aithrisean Ionmhais 
Tha Aithris Ionmhais na Comhairle agus a buidheann airson 2012/13, crìochnaichte a-rèir Còd Obrachaidh Cunntasachd 
Ùghdarras Ionadail anns an Rìoghachd Aonaichte 2012/13, mar a tha mìnichte aig duilleagan 27-79. 

Aithris Uallaichean airson na Cunntasan Bhliadhnail  
Tha an Aithris seo a’ mìneachadh uallaichean fa leth air a’ Chomhairle agus air Stiùiriche Ionmhas agus Stòras Corporra 
airson na h-aithrisean ionmhais. 

Aithris Bhliadhnail Cheannardais air Barantais  
Tha an aithris seo a’ mìneachadh am frèam-obrach far a bheil rian air smachd ionmhais agus an ath-sgrùdadh air prìomh 
eileamaidean an t-siostam, nam measg ullachadh airson Luchd-sgrùdaidh In-thaigh. 

8



Aithisg Ìocaidh  
Tha an Aithisg seo a’ mìneachadh poileasaidhean ìocaidh na Comhairle do dh’oifigearan agus buill ann an àrd 
dhreuchdan, le mion fhiosrachaidh air na pàighidhean agus buannachdan peinnsein do na h-oifigearan agus na Buill sin. 

Na h-Aithrisean Ionmhais 

 Aithris air Gluasad ann an Stòrais - a’ comharrachadh a’ ghluasaid ann am bliadhna air an stòras eadar-
dhealaichte air an cumail leis a’ Chomhairle, (a dh’fhaodas a bhith air a chleachdadh mu choinneimh cosgais no
airson lughdachadh cìs ionadail) agus “stòrais so-chleachdaidh”.  Tha loidhne Còrr/Call air Ullachadh
Sheirbheisean a’ comharrachadh fìor chosgais ullachadh sheirbheisean.  Tha iad seo eadar-dhealaichte bho na
h-àireamhan reachdail a dh’fheumar a chur ri Cothromachadh a’ Mhaoin Choitchinn ann a bhith a’ stèidheachadh
a’ chìs chomhairle.

 Aithris Iomlan air Teachd-a-steach agus Cosgais – a’ sealltainn cosgais cunntasachd sa bhliadhna air
ullachadh sheirbheisean a rèir inbhean aithris ionmhais eadar-nàiseanta (IFRS); an àite maoin bho chìsean.  Tha
Ùghdarrasan a’ togail chìsean airson coinneachadh ri cosgais a rèir na riaghailtean, agus faodaidh sin a bhith
eadar-dhealaichte bhon chosgais cunntasachd.  Tha suidheachadh chìsean mìnichte ann an Aithris Gluasad
Stòrais.

 Cunntas Cothromachaidh – a’ sealltainn luach so-mhaoin agus do-mhaoin na Comhairle.  Tha an so-mhaoin
lom (as aonais na do-mhaoin) gan coimeas ris an stòras glèidhte.  Thatar ag aithris stòras ann an dà dhòigh.  `S e
a’ chiad dhiubh sin stòras so-chleachdte, `s e sin an stòras a dh’fhaodas a’ Chomhairle cleachdadh mu
choinneimh sheirbheisean, an urra ri feumalachd ìre ghlic a chumail agus cuibhreachadh reachdail air cleachdadh
(mar eisimpleir an Stòras Maoin bho Chalpa nach gabh a chleachdadh ach a-mhàin airson cosgais calpa no
airson fiachan a phàigheadh).  Tha an dara gnè a ghabhail a-steach stòras nach eil cothrom aig a’ Chomhairle
cleachdadh airson seirbheisean a thoirt seachad.  Tha an stòras seo a’ gabhail a-steach buannachd agus call
neo-choileanta (mar eisimpleir an Stòras Ath-mheasaichte), far am biodh airgead ann airson seirbheisean a thoirt
seachad nam b` e is gun deidheadh an so-mhaoin a reic, agus stòras le eadar-dhealachadh tìm air an sealltainn
ann an loidhne Aithris Gluasad ann an Stòras “Atharraichidhean eadar bunait cunntasachd agus bunait
maoineachaidh fo riaghailtean”.

 Aithris Gluasad Airgid – a’ sealltainn na h-atharraichidhean ann an airgead agus co-ionnanachd airgid rè àm na
h-aithriseachd.  Tha an aithris a’ sealltainn mar a tha a’ Chomhairle a’ togail agus a’ cleachdadh an stòras seo le
bhith gan comharrachadh mar ghnìomhan obrach, in-thasgaidh no maoineachaidh.  Tha meud na sruthan
ionmhais ag èirigh à gnìomhan obrach nam phrìomh chomharra air an ìre gu bheil obraichean na Comhairle air a
maoineachadh tro chìsean agus tabhartasan no bho luchd-cleachdaidh sheirbheisean.  Tha gnìomhan in-
thasgaidh a’ riochdachadh an ìre gu bheil sruthan airgid air an cleachdadh ann a bhith a’ lìbhrigeadh
sheirbheisean.  Tha sruthan airgid ag èirigh à gnìomhan maoineachaidh nan comharra fheumail air na dh’fheumar
a thoirt a-mach air iasad.

 Cunntasan Teachd-a-steach – a’ sealltainn an teachd-a-steach iomlan agus glan bhon Chìs Chomhairle agus
Reataichean Neo-dhachaigheil agus an cuibhrionn dhan phoit nàiseanta airson reataichean neo-dhachaigheil
agus an cuibhrionn a gheibh a’ Chomhairle bhon phoit.

 Cunntasan Bhuidhnean – a’ gabhail a-steach Co-bhòrd Measaidh a’ Ghàidhealtachd `s nan Eilean mar
chompàirtiche agus Sgoiltean Ùra LLP mar fo-bhuidheann, a’ sealltainn suidheachadh ionmhais iomlan na
Comhairle.

Suidheachadh Eacanomaigeach 

Dh’aontaich a’ Chomhairle Ro-innleachd a’ bhuidseit airson 2015-18 aig coinneamh air 23 Giblean 2014. Ged a tha 
soilleireachadh a-nis air rèite ionmhais 2015/16, tha a’ mhì-chinnt co-cheangailte ris an Referendum air neo-eisimeileachd 
agus taghaidhean Westminster ann an 2015 agus ath-sgrùdadh air caiteachas an Rìoghachd Aonaichte a’ ciallachadh gu 
bheil e nas duilghe tuairmse a thoirt air suidheachadh ionmhais 1s na bliadhnachan ri teachd. Tha an clàr gu h-ìosail a’ 
mìneachadh na sàbhalaidhean a dh’fhaodadh a bhith mu choinneamh na Comhairle 2022. 
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 
 
Scope of Responsibility 
 
Comhairle nan Eilean Siar is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law 
and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded and proper arrangements are in place to account for 
it.  The Comhairle also has a statutory duty to achieve best value in terms of the Local Government in Scotland 
Act 2003 by making arrangements to secure continuous improvement in performance, while maintaining an 
appropriate balance between quality and cost; and in making those arrangements and securing that balance, to 
have regard to economy, efficiency, effectiveness, equal opportunities and future sustainability. 
 
In discharging this overall responsibility Members and officers are responsible for putting in place proper 
arrangements (known as the Governance Framework) for the governance of the Comhairle’s affairs and 
facilitating its exercise of its functions.  This includes  
 

 setting the strategic direction, vision, culture and values of the Comhairle;   
 the effective operation of corporate systems, processes and internal controls; 
 engaging with and leading the community;  
 monitoring whether strategic objectives have been achieved and services delivered cost effectively; and  
 ensuring that appropriate arrangements are in place for the management of risk and that the Comhairle 

complies with the statement on the role of the Chief Financial Officer in local government. 
 
To this end the Comhairle has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance which is consistent with 
the principles and recommendations of the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy)/SOLACE (Society of Local Authority Chief Executives) framework Delivering Good Governance in 
Local Government and the supporting guidance notes for Scottish Authorities. 
 
The Code evidences the Comhairle’s commitment to achieving good governance and demonstrates how it 
complies with the governance standards recommended by CIPFA. 
 
The Comhairle has also put in place a system of internal control designed to manage risk to a reasonable level.  
Internal controls cannot eliminate risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives but can provide 
reasonable if not absolute assurance.  The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to 
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Comhairle policies, aims and objectives; to evaluate the 
likelihood of these risks being realised and the impact should they be realised; and to manage them efficiently, 
effectively and economically. 
 
The Purpose of the Governance Framework 
 
The Governance Framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values which direct and control 
the Comhairle’s activities and through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the community.  It enables 
the Comhairle to monitor achievements of the strategic objectives set out in the Outer Hebrides Community 
Planning Partnership’s Single Outcome Agreement 2013-23 and the Comhairle’s Corporate Strategy 2012-17.  
The Governance Framework has been further strengthened during the year ended 31 March 2014 and continues 
to be reviewed.  The Comhairle adopted its Scheme of Administration, Scheme of Delegation and Standing 
Orders on 10 May 2012 at its statutory meeting following their review in 2011/12 by the previous Comhairle. 
 
The Governance Framework 
 
The main features of the Comhairle’s Governance Framework are described in the Code but are summarised 
below.  
 
The Single Outcome Agreement 2013-23 was the subject of review and further consultation in autumn 2012 and 
the draft agreement was approved on 28 March 2013.  The SOA was quality assured with Scottish Government 
and finalised following submission of a letter detailing further work agreed by Scottish Government’s Head of 
Local Government and the Comhairle’s Chief Executive to the Minister for Local Government and Planning and 
the Comhairle’s Leader on 5 July 2013.  The initial approved action plan is for a three year period.  
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In the SOA the Comhairle and its Community Planning Partners have developed seven local outcomes and 
related thematic groups which aim to ensure that: -  

 The populations of the Outer Hebrides are stable with a better balance of age, gender and socio-
economic groups;

 The economy of the Outer Hebrides and the economies within the Outer Hebrides are thriving;
 The people of the Outer Hebrides are well educated, well trained and well skilled;
 The physical and mental health and wellbeing of the people throughout the Outer Hebrides is improved;
 The communities of the Outer Hebrides are stronger and more able to identify, articulate and take action

and responsibility regarding their needs and aspirations;
 The people of the Outer Hebrides derive maximum benefit from the natural and cultural resources of the

area, whilst at the same time safeguarding those resources to benefit future generations; and
 The services of the Outer Hebrides are of high quality, continuously improving and reflective of local

needs.

The Community Planning Partnership has established five thematic outcome groups to oversee the work of 
partners in achieving outcomes and report on progress to the OHCPP through the Executive Group whose 
membership is the Chair of the CPP, the Chairs of the outcome groups and the Chair of Third Sector interface. 
The five groups are: 

 Economy Outcome Group;
 Education, Training and Skills Outcome Group;
 Communities Outcome Group;
 Health and Wellbeing Outcome Group; and
 Natural and Cultural Resources Outcome Group.

Through the Community Planning network partner organisations such as health, third sector and Police Scotland 
work with the Comhairle to develop strategies to meet the objectives of the SOA and active community 
engagement ensures local participation, accountability and influences decision making.  

The Single Outcome Agreement can be viewed at: 
http://www.ohcpp.org.uk/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=121&Itemid=175. 

Together with the Single Outcome Agreement (SOA), the Corporate Strategy sets out the Comhairle’s vision, 
values and provides strategic context for the delivery of services across the Outer Hebrides as well as forming 
the basis of the Comhairle’s annual service business plans.  

Community engagement and public consultation took place during the summer and autumn of 2012 in relation to 
the Comhairle’s Corporate Strategy 2012-17 which was approved on 1 November 2012.  

The Comhairle’s mission is ‘to work with its community and other partners to help shape the Outer Hebrides as a 
confident community and an attractive place to live, work and do business’.  The Comhairle’s Corporate values 
are:- 

Working Together 
To lead partnership working to make the best use of available resources 

Good Quality Services 
To provide good quality and efficient services to meet the needs of the community 

Community Leadership 
To engage positively with the community and be responsive to its needs 

Represent the Outer Hebrides 
To present a positive image of the Outer Hebrides at Scottish, UK and EU level 

Sustainability 
To ensure that the economic, environmental and social factors are balanced 

Equalities 
To promote fairness and equalities for all. 
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The Corporate Strategy can be viewed at:
http://www.cne-siar.gov.uk/cxdir/executiveoffice/corporatestrategy/index.asp.  

Service Business Plans are approved annually for all Comhairle departments.  These plans are based on the 
SOA and the Comhairle’s Corporate Strategy and their objectives reflect SOA local outcomes.  The Comhairle’s 
strategic priorities are cognisant of current financial and other resources and play a pivotal role in striving to 
achieve continuous improvement and Best Value.  

Policy making and decisions are delivered through a Committee structure which was last reviewed in May 2012 
and which includes an Audit and Scrutiny Committee.  All decisions are made by the Comhairle other than those 
matters specifically delegated to other statutory or quasi-judicial Committees and in relation to human resources 
matters affecting individual employees.  

The role of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee is to:- 

 Ensure that an effective governance and internal control system is maintained to:-

 Safeguard assets; 
 Avoid waste; 
 Avoid inefficiency; 
 Produce accurate financial information; 
 Seek best value/value for money; and 
 Reduce unnecessary waste. 

 Ensure the Comhairle’s activities are within the law and regulations governing Scottish Councils and
encourage propriety and probity.

The Audit and Scrutiny Committee independently contributes to the Comhairle’s overall process for ensuring that 
effective governance, internal control and risk systems are maintained.   The Audit and Scrutiny Committee, after 
each meeting, reports to the full Comhairle. 

From 2012/13 the work of Internal Audit has been absorbed into the Audit and Scrutiny Committee to raise its 
profile.   It has met the requirements of best practice as outlines in guidance provided by CIPFA on the note of 
Audit Committees in the UK. 

We have continued to enhance and strengthen our internal control environment through the updating and 
introduction of new policies and procedures.   The Scheme of Delegation sets out the delegations made to 
Committees and officers under the principle that decisions should be made at the lowest or most local level 
consistent with the nature of the issues involved.   The Comhairle also has Financial Regulations and Standing 
Orders relating to contracts in place and all of these procedural documents are regularly reviewed. 

The Comhairle’s system of internal financial control throughout the financial year 2013/14 was based on a 
framework of regular management information, financial regulations, administrative procedures, management 
supervision and a system of delegation and accountability.  In particular, the system includes:-  

 Comprehensive budgeting systems;
 Setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
 Regular reviews of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate financial performance against the

forecasts and targets; and
 Clearly defined capital expenditure guidelines.

The Internal Audit function provides an independent assurance on the system of internal control designed to 
ensure that the Comhairle achieves its objectives and to provide assurance that it manages its risks efficiently 
and effectively. 

Internal Audit fulfils this role by undertaking a range of reviews which critically evaluate the organisation’s internal 
control framework.   Where necessary, Internal Audit makes recommendations for improvement and introduces 
best practice throughout the organisation. 

The standards of professional practice, which have to be met by Internal Audit, are contained within the 
International Professional Practices Framework and provided under the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards to 
local authorities in the United Kingdom.  In addition, the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014 
will provide for the re-designation of Internal Audit to a statutory service within all local authorities in Scotland. 
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CIPFA have also published a document called “The role of the Head of Internal Audit” which supports and 
supplements the Code of Practice previously issued by CIPFA, the Comhairle’s Internal Audit section fully 
acknowledges this additional information in the discharge of its responsibilities and conduct. 
 
Internal Audit is sufficiently independent of the activities it audits to enable audit staff to perform their duties in a 
manner which facilitates impartial and effective professional judgements and recommendations. 
 
Internal Audit report directly to the Director of Finance and Corporate Resources who has statutory responsibility 
as proper officer under Section 95 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 for ensuring an effective system 
of internal financial control and proper financial administration of the Comhairle’s affairs.   
 
Internal Audit has direct access to the Chief Executive who carries the responsibility for the proper management 
of the Comhairle and for ensuring the principles of good governance are reflected in sound management 
arrangements. 
 
During 2013/14 Internal Audit achieved 100% of the amended Internal Audit plan, which equates to twenty seven 
out of twenty seven planned audits having being substantially completed by 31 March 2014.  This was achieved 
despite an increasing number of unplanned investigations; three investigations were complex and lengthy and 
used a significant amount of audit resources. 
 
Internal Audit has agreed a rolling programme of Internal Audit coverage.  The programme also relates to the 
level of available resources focusing on high and medium high risk areas.  On the basis of the Internal Audit 
coverage and work completed in 2013/14, Internal Audit consider that the general system of internal control 
appears to be adequate but would point out a number of exceptions;  

 
 SOLACE is currently reviewing the terms and conditions of chief officers and consequently the Comhairle 

has not yet agreed a specific competency framework for chief officers.   It is reasonably foreseeable that 
this will be concluded in 2013/14;  

 
 Whilst there has been a maintained improvement in risk management processes, policies and strategy 

within the Comhairle there is an on-going need to embed and develop recognised best practice risk 
management processes; 

 
 An advance payment of capital grant to the value of £38K was made to an external organisation which 

was not totally matched to capital, resulting in a risk that the Comhairle has borrowed to finance 
expenditure which was not capital.   Although  the value of the payment is not material, it has been agreed 
to provide more detailed guidance to staff dealing with these grants; 

 
 The Comhairle no longer operates a significant trading operation.   Some of its trading operations failed to 

break even although the overall position across the operations resulted in a surplus.   It is understood that 
work is underway with a view to achieving a break even position in future; and 

 
 In April 2013 it came to light that a number of employees who undertake overnight duties, predominantly 

in caring establishments, may have been over/under paid since the implementation of Single Status in 
2008.   The extent of financial exposure has not yet been identified but is unlikely to be material and the 
Comhairle has been proactive in contacting staff and offering one-to-one support from line managers. 

 
The Strategic Risk Register was reviewed in April 2014; the composition of the Register has changed with the 
new document being more closely linked to the Corporate Strategy.  It is anticipated that all other risks identified 
within the Comhairle will be linked to a Strategic Risk.  The Risk Management Policy, Strategy and Partnership 
Risk Management Strategy have also been reviewed.  The Risk Management Policy describes why risk 
management is carried out and details specific roles and responsibilities of elected members and all employees.  
The strategy documents describe the processes that should be followed in order for the Comhairle to achieve risk 
maturity.  There have been no fundamental changes made to these documents.  Roles and responsibilities as 
detailed in the Policy have been updated as Risk Management becomes embedded.  The quarterly risk activity 
report has been added to the Risk Management Policy and Strategy and an update to the reporting and quality 
assurance sections.  
 
Considerable progress has been made with Steps 1-4 of the Comhairle’s Risk Management process which is 
detailed in the Risk Management Strategy.  The central risk function will focus on increasing the Comhairle’s risk 
maturity by improving Steps 5 and 6.  This means that the identification and assessment of risks has improved 
greatly throughout the Comhairle.  The next steps where improvement is required are to formalise the planning 
and implementation of agreed risk treatment actions.  The strategy now addresses this by stating that 
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Departments should focus on their highest risks to actively manage and provide a quarterly update through 
Interplan.  
 
The Comhairle has a whistle blowing policy which has been issued by Human Resources and is available to all 
employees and members of the public, partners and contractors.  The Whistle Blowing Policy has recently been 
reviewed and was reported to Committee in September 2012.  No matters were raised under this policy in 
2013/14.  
 
The Comhairle has a code of conduct for employees and high standards of behaviour are supported by employee 
contracts of employment and annual SDA reviews which identify individual training and development 
requirements.  During 2010/11, a revised Code of Conduct for Elected Members was introduced and training on 
the requirements of the new Code was provided for elected Members.  Members’ induction training in relation to 
this Code took place on 7 May 2012.  The Chief Executive has met with all elected members to provide a 
Personal Development Plan for each member.  Following analysis of these plans, a refresher seminar on 
Declaration of Interest was held on 15 January 2014 and a seminar on Revenue Budgeting will be held in June 
2014.  At its meeting on 15 May 2013, the Local Government Employee JCC recommended that the members’ 
and employees’ Codes of Conduct be reviewed.  At its meeting on 13 May 2014, the JCC considered a Report 
which detailed how the employee side concerns were addressed in the current Codes and it was agreed that no 
changes to the Codes were required.  
 
There were no referrals to the Standards Commission for Scotland under the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc 
(Scotland) Act 2000 in 2013/14.  
 
The Comhairle monitors performance using an electronic performance management system (Interplan) which is 
populated with a wide range of performance indicators agreed following a comprehensive review of performance 
indicators across all Comhairle services.  Performance against the Comhairle service plans is also monitored 
through this system and reported to the Comhairle at each series of meetings.  This enhanced performance 
reporting as it relates to the interests of individual committees commenced at the June 2012 series of meetings 
was reviewed in autumn 2013 and is ongoing.  In its May 2014 BV2 follow-up Report, Audit Scotland concluded 
that the Comhairle had consolidated the significant progress made earlier in developing its performance 
management framework and public performance reporting.  It also stated that the Comhairle had strengthened its 
culture of Performance Management and recognised an improvement and increase in the level of scrutiny and 
challenge by councillors.  
 
Audit Outcomes/ Areas for Improvement  
 
Audit Scotland published an Audit of Best Value and Community Planning in Comhairle nan Eilean Siar on 30 
November 2011.  This Report concluded that the Comhairle was a satisfactory council with fair prospects of 
improvement.  Follow-up work was carried out by Audit Scotland in September 2012 and reported to the 
Comhairle in December 2012.  That Report stated that there were five areas in the Corporate Improvement Plan 
and highlighted those areas where progress was behind schedule, follow-up work was conducted in February 
2014 and Audit Scotland’s report published on 12 May 2014.  This follow-up Report concluded that the Comhairle 
had consolidated earlier progress in developing Performance Management, reporting and self-evaluation to 
establish a more effective and embedded culture of challenge and improvement.  It had also built on these 
foundations to demonstrate real improvements in key areas such as asset and workforce management.  The 
Comhairle had brought together the views of its communities and used these to influence decisions and service 
design.  It recognised that it could make further progress in developing its approach to understanding and 
responding to customer views.  This Report was considered by the Accounts Commission on 15 May 2014 
whose findings were published on 27 May 2014. They agreed the following recommendations of Audit Scotland 
to be submitted to the Comhairle in terms of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to be embedded in the 
Comhairle’s overall improvement agenda and reflected within its key documents such as the Corporate 
Improvement Plan:   
 
The Comhairle should build on its progress in recent years, particularly in relation to self evaluation, and more 
fully embed an improvement focussed culture throughout the organisation; 

 The Comhairle should more effectively develop the skills of its workforce by: Ensuring that all staff have 
an annual performance appraisal; Considering the benefits of having a more standardised annual 
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appraisal cycle linked to departmental business plans and corporate workforce planning; and Ensuring 
that departmental training plans are developed across all departments. 

 The Comhairle should manage its workforce more effectively by making best use of its information
systems and monitoring sickness absence more consistently across the organisation.  It should also
generate a better understanding of the underlying causes of sickness absence to ensure it can take
appropriate action and be effective in achieving further improvements in absence levels.

 The Comhairle should extend its use of the customer satisfaction measurement tool (CSMT) across all
regular user surveys.  It should also agree a coordinated corporate schedule of customer service activity
to ensure that it gathers customer feedback most efficiently.

 The Comhairle should report its performance to the public in a more balanced and transparent way by
giving more attention to those areas where performance is less successful and what actions it will take to
address this.

The Commission accepted Audit Scotland’s Report and welcomed the progress made by the Comhairle against 
its previous findings.  The Commission indicated that it was encouraged by the increased scrutiny and challenge 
of performance by councillors and by the progress made in how the Comhairle managed its workforce notably in 
the performance, learning and development of individual employees.  It also noted that the Comhairle recognised 
the need to evaluate and act upon customer and citizen views more effectively.  The Commission expressed the 
view that the Western Isles community had a reasonable expectation of the Comhairle being customer focused 
and having mechanisms in place to consistently improve its performance and identified the need to make this a 
permanent feature by adherence to principles of best value and a strong corporate capacity to support 
improvements. 

The Comhairle’s Assurance and Improvement Plan Update 2014-17 (AIP) prepared by the Comhairle’s Local 
Area Network (LAN) was published in June 2014 and presented to the Comhairle on 25 June 2014. The update 
concluded that no scrutiny was required in any areas covered by the risk based shared assessment carried out 
by the LAN.  The Report also highlighted that the structure and arrangements for Health and Social Care 
Integration were still to be finalised and that this area would be monitored by the LAN.  

The Report highlights that as part of the Community Planning Partnership, the Comhairle had set out an 
ambitious set of outcomes for the future in the Single Outcome Agreement (SOA) 2013-23 that are based around 
reversing the trend of population decline and achieving economic growth.  It notes that the SOA had been 
scrutinised and approved through the Scottish Government’s quality assurance process.  The Report also 
highlights that the Education service has been engaged in working with Education Scotland on a validated self-
evaluation process during the winter of 2013/14.  This work had focused on leadership and learning.  The results 
of this process would form an action plan for continuous improvement and a short Report was scheduled to be 
published in Spring 2014.  The Care Inspectorate had also continued to have regular dialogue about 
improvements which would continue next year.  Services are good and improving overall and LAN members will 
continue dialogue in relation to the pace of change.  

The AIP indicates that the Comhairle’s Corporate Improvement Member Officer Working Group has provided 
strong leadership across a range of areas which was leading to clear improvements.  These were most notable in 
relation to increasing accountability and effective self-evaluation.  The Comhairle intended to work with the LAN 
in developing its approaches to challenge and support within the internal challenge team using ‘How Good is our 
Council?’ with Members of the LAN providing external validation. 

The AIP also states that Community Planning structures in the Outer Hebrides are designed to ensure that 
people in communities are genuinely engaged in decisions about public services which affect them. Community 
engagement events were conducted across the islands as well as online access to surveys and special interest 
groups were subject to the specific consultation which informed the development of the SOA and the strategies 
underpinning the SOA.  The Comhairle works together with the Third Sector to ensure that their experience and 
knowledge of the community informs the CPP’s work.  In addition, extensive consultation events are held on the 
Comhairle’s annual Budget Setting process and a wide range of customer/user satisfaction surveys, 
questionnaires and consultation and engagement events are undertaken at both corporate and service level. 
The Comhairle issued a Customer Satisfaction survey in May 2014 to Councillors, Community Councils, 
Residents Associations, Community Planning Partners, Youth Councils and a sample of one in ten Western Isles 
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households.  The survey results will be analysed and reported to the Comhairle at its September/October 2014 
series of meetings so that it may inform the Budget setting process for 2015/16.  It is anticipated that a similar 
survey will continue to be issued on an annual basis.  Details of current and past consultations are available on 
the Comhairle’s website and the results of these are used to inform the strategic direction, policy and service 
priorities.  

The Comhairle regularly publishes information about its services and performance.  The Comhairle’s end of year 
performance report is published on the Comhairle’s website.  A performance calendar has been issued in the last 
three years and is circulated primarily through schools and is available to others on request.  The BV2 follow-up 
Report of May 2014 identifies a need for more balanced and public reporting which gives more attention to those 
areas where performance is less successful and the actions it is taking to address this.  This recommendation will 
be implemented in the 2013/14 Performance Calendar and performance information on the Comhairle’s website. 
Reports to Committee are already based on exception reporting to encourage engagement and challenge from 
elected members. 

Audit Scotland’s Best Value 2 follow-up Report published on 12 May 2014 concluded that the Comhairle had 
consolidated earlier progress in developing performance management reporting and self-evaluation to establish a 
more effective and embedded culture of challenge and improvement.  It had also built on these foundations to 
demonstrate real improvements in key areas such as work force and asset management.  The Comhairle had 
brought together the views of its communities and used these to influence decisions and service design.  In 
recognition of the Comhairle’s commitment to the principles of Best Value and its wish to sustain its progress in 
respect of continuous improvement Audit Scotland made the following recommendations which the Comhairle 
accepted at its meeting on 25 June 2014.  

 The Comhairle should build on its progress in recent years particularly in relation to self-evaluation and
more fully embed an improvement focused culture throughout the organisation.

 The Comhairle should more effectively develop the skills of its work force by:

 Ensuring that all staff have an annual performance appraisal;

 Considering benefits of having a more standardised annual appraisal cycle linked to
departmental business plans and corporate work force planning; and

 Ensuring that departmental training plans are developed across all departments.

 The Comhairle should manage its work force more effectively by making best use of its information
systems and monitoring sickness absence more consistently across the organisation.  It should also
generate a better understanding of the under lying causes of sickness absence to ensure it can take
appropriate action and be effective in achieving further improvements in absence levels.

 The Comhairle should extend its use of the Customer Satisfaction Measurement Tool (CSMT) across all
regular user surveys.  It should also agree a coordinated corporate schedule of customer service activity
to ensure that it gathers customer feedback most efficiently.

 The Comhairle should report its performance to the public in a more balanced and transparent way by
giving more attention to these areas where performance is less successful and what actions it will take to
address this.

Review of Effectiveness 

During 2013/14, Comhairle nan Eilean Siar continued to put in place appropriate management and reporting 
arrangements to enable it to be satisfied that its approach to corporate governance is both appropriate and 
effective in practice.  Specifically, the Comhairle’s governance arrangements have been reviewed and tested 
against the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework.  Whilst this process of review is co-ordinated 
corporately and approved by the Corporate Management Team, Directors and Heads of Service have 
responsibility to ensure that their own governance arrangements are adequate and operating effectively.  In line 
with the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework, each Director and Head of Service is required to make an annual 
statement confirming that this is the case. 
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The conclusion from this review was that the Comhairle largely complies with the terms of the new Framework. 
However, there are a number of areas for development which include:- 

 Increased use of benchmarking;
 Workforce Planning; and
 Corporate self-evaluation.

Work is ongoing on each of these strands as stated elsewhere in the Report.  Quality indicators 5.2 (Developing, 
managing and improving partnerships and relationships with service users and other stakeholders); 5.4 
(Improving the quality of services to stakeholders); 8.1 (Partnership working); and 1.1 (Improvements in 
Performance) of the How Good is Our Council framework have been concluded.  A revised validated self-
evaluation model was agreed on 13 February 2014 involving the LAN as critical friend.  The first area to be 
examined will be key area 2 – How Well do we meet the needs of our Stakeholders? 

Work is ongoing on each of these strands as stated elsewhere in the Report.  The review did not highlight any 
concerns in governance over and above those highlighted earlier in this Report.  

Review of Effectiveness – Subsidiaries 

Sgoiltean Ùra LLP (SULLP) is a limited liability partnership of Comhairle nan Eilean Siar and Sgoiltean Ùra 
(Investments) Ltd (SUIL), a company limited by guarantee which is wholly owned by the Comhairle.  SUIL has 
one “share” in the partnership compared to CnES’s 9999 “shares”.  There are eight Board Members of whom 
seven have voting powers.  Of the seven voting members five are appointed by the Comhairle and the Comhairle 
reserves the right to instruct them how to vote which failing to remove them from the Board.  It has not been 
necessary to exercise this power. Sgoiltean Ura ceased meeting on 31 March 2013.  The construction and 
lifecycle maintenance/facilities management contracts are in the process of being assigned to the Comhairle. 
The Contracts Management Sub-Committee has assumed the role of monitoring the implementation of these 
contracts. 

Litigation 

The Comhairle had raised petitions for Judicial Review against Scottish Ministers’ refusal to agree to close a 
number of schools in the Western Isles.  The Comhairle was successful in this action on 31 May 2013 and the 
schools in question closed on 28 June 2013. 

Ionad Spòrs Leodhais (ISL) 

This action was raised by the Comhairle in relation to design failures at ISL.  

There were four parties involved in this action which caused a delay in fixing a mediation aimed at resolving the 
dispute.  The mediation finally took place in December 2013 where an offer was ultimately made to the Comhairle 
for settlement.  This was rejected as the Comhairle did not regard it as sufficient.  

It was thought that the momentum gained through the mediation would lead to a settlement shortly thereafter 
however this has not materialised.  The Comhairle has therefore moved to have the case brought before court as 
soon as possible.  Unfortunately, given the complexity of the case (requiring a number of days of court time) and 
the court’s current timetable, the earliest date for a proof is early 2016.  Despite that, the Comhairle has reason to 
be optimistic that a resolution will be found in early course.  The continued delay adds to the Comhairle’s claim 
significantly particularly in respect of interest (and potentially also in respect of further outlays).  The defenders 
are fully aware of this and are likely to seek to mitigate their liability by pursuing settlement.  The Comhairle will 
continue to press for that. 

It is also worth noting that as a result of the mediation the defenders reached a settlement with one of the parties 
they had brought in as third party defenders.  As a result that party is no longer involved in the action. 

Integrated Waste Management Facility (IWMF) 

This case relates to in-vessel composters at the IWMF which do not function properly and the Comhairle has 
therefore raised a court action for damages.  Talks have been ongoing about organising mediation for parties to 
reach settlement.  It is likely that this will take place at the end of June 2014.  The Comhairle was not prepared to 
allow these talks to further delay court proceedings.  Consequently, despite opposition from other parties a 
debate has been fixed for the end of October 2014.  Should the mediation prove successful the debate will not be 
required.  However, a court date that is relatively close at hand should provide impetus for the mediation/other 
settlement discussions. 

19



20



 

REMUNERATION REPORT 
 
Introduction 
 
This report is set out in accordance with the Local Authority (Scotland) Act, as amended by the Local Authority Accounts 
(Scotland) Amendment regulations 2011.  These regulations require the disclosure of certain details in respect of the 
remuneration and pension benefits of senior councillors and senior employees, including those employed by subsidiary 
bodies.  The term remuneration means gross salary, fees and bonuses, allowances and expenses, and compensation for 
loss of employment.  It excludes pension contributions paid by the Comhairle.  Gross salary means the annual salary for a 
full time employee or councillor and for presentation purposes the salaries of part time employees or those who have been 
employed or served as Councillors for less than a full year are annualised. 
 
The term pension benefits, covers the in-year contributions paid by the Comhairle for the employee or Councillor, and their 
accrued pension benefits at 31 March 2014.  
 
All information disclosed in the following tables will be audited by external auditors.  The other sections will be reviewed by 
external auditors to ensure that they are consistent with the financial statements. 
 
Arrangements for Remuneration 
 
Councillors 
 
The remuneration of Councillors is regulated by the Local Governance (Scotland) Act 2004 (Remuneration) Regulations 
2007 (SSI No. 2007/183).  The Regulations provide for the grading of Councillors for the purposes of remuneration 
arrangements, as either the Leader of the Council, the Civic Head (Convener), Senior Councillors or Councillors.  The 
Leader of the Council and the Civic head cannot be the same person for the purposes of payment of remuneration.  A 
Senior Councillor is a Councillor who holds a significant position of responsibility in the Council’s political management 
structure and for the Comhairle this has been assumed to be the Committee Chairpersons and the Vice-chair of Policy and 
Resources committee. 
 
When determining the level of remuneration for Councillors the Scottish Ministers consider the recommendations of the 
Scottish Local Authority Remuneration Committee (SLARC).  This is an advisory Non-Departmental Public Body set up in 
2005 to advise Scottish Ministers on the remuneration, allowances and expenses incurred by Local Authority Councillors.  
 
The salary that is to be paid to the Leader of the Council is set out in the Regulations.  For 2013/14 the salary for the 
Leader of the Comhairle is £27,329.  The Regulations permit the council to remunerate one Civic Head (Convener).  The 
regulations set out the maximum salary that may be paid to that Civic Head and Comhairle policy is to pay in accordance 
with national guidelines. 
  
The Regulations also set out the remuneration that may be paid to Senior Councillors and the total number of Senior 
Councillors the Council may have.  The maximum yearly amount that may be paid to a Senior Councillor is 75 per cent of 
the total yearly amount payable to the Leader of the Council.  The total yearly amount payable by the council for 
remuneration of all of its Senior Councillors shall not exceed £184,471.  The Council is able to exercise local flexibility in 
the determination of the precise number of Senior Councillors and their salary within these maximum limits.  
 
In 2013/14 the Comhairle had eight Senior Councillors and the remuneration paid to these Councillors totalled £161,553.  
The Regulations also permit the Council to pay contributions or other payments as required to the Local Government 
Pension Scheme in respect of those Councillors who elect to become members of the pension scheme.  

 
In addition to the Senior Councillors of the Comhairle the Regulations also set out the remuneration payable to Councillors 
with the responsibility of a Convenor or a Vice-Convenor of a Joint Board such as a Police Joint Board.  The Regulations 
require the remuneration to be paid by the Council of which the convenor or vice-convenor (as the case may be) is a 
member.  The Council is also required to pay any pension contributions arising from the convenor or vice-convenor being 
a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme.  The Comhairle is reimbursed by the Joint Board for any additional 
remuneration paid to the member from being a Convenor or Vice-Convenor of a Joint Board. 
 
Senior Employees 

 
The salary of senior employees is set by reference to national arrangements.  The Scottish Joint Negotiating Committee 
(SJNC) for Local Authority Services sets the salaries for the Chief Executives of Scottish local authorities.  The majority of 
councils follow national guidelines whereby the salaries of the Corporate Directors and Heads of Service, are based on a 
fixed percentage of the Chief Executive’s salary in three bandings.  The Comhairle agreed to discontinue this link in 2002, 
to allow these officers to receive the nationally negotiated increments to the scale from that date. 
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Employees whose remuneration was £50,000 or more 
 
This table shows the number of employees whose remuneration in 2013/14 was £50,000 or more.  Any starters or leavers 
are recorded in the band that matches their actual remuneration (i.e. not annualised).  During the year a number of 
employees accepted voluntary redundancy or early retirement, and these redundancy and compensation payments are 
included in the remuneration figures.  
 

Remuneration Band Number of Employees
2013/14             2012/13            

 £50,000 - £54,999 18 24 
 £55,000 - £59,999 - 1 
 £60,000 - £64,999 - - 
 £65,000 - £69,999 1 2 
 £70,000 - £74,999 1 2 
 £75,000 - £79,999 4 4 
 £80,000 - £84,999 - - 
 £85,000 - £89,999 - - 
 £90,000 - £94,999 - - 
 £95,000 - £99,999 1 1 
£125,000 - £129,999 - - 

Total 25 34
 
Exit Packages of Employees 
 
The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set out 
in the table below. 
 
Exit package cost band 

(including special 
payments) 

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Number of other 
departures agreed 

Total number of 
exit packages by 

cost band 

Total cost of exit 
packages in each band 

2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13
£0 - £20,000 - - 12 16 12 16 £45,088 £80,570 
£20,001 - £40,000 - - 9 4 9 4 £254,442 £120,871 
£40,001 - £60,000 - 1 1 1 1 2 £59,859 £102,931 
£60,001 - £80,000 - - 3 - 3 - £222,862 - 
£80,001 - £100,000 - - 5 1 5 1 £427,682 £87,643 
£100,001 - £150,000 - - - - - - - - 
£150,001 - £200,000 - - - - - - - - 
Total - 1 30 22 30 23 £1,009,933 £392,015
 
Remuneration of Senior Councillors and Senior Employees 
 
The following tables provide details of the remunerations paid to the Comhairle’s Senior Councillors and senior employees:  
 
Senior Councillors and Convenors of Joint Boards 

 

Name and Responsibility 

2013/14 2012/13 
Salary, fees & 
Allowances 

Taxable 
Expenses 

Total 
Remuneration 

Total 
Remuneration 

£ £ £ £ 
Angus Campbell, Leader of the 
Comhairle 

27,329 - 27,329 26,680 

Norman A Macdonald, Convenor  20,497 - 20,497 19,862 
Catriona Stewart, Chair of 
Education & Children’s Services 

18,447 - 18,447 17,871 
(Full year 

equivalent 
18,264) 

John Mackay, Chair of 
Transportation Note 1 

21,492 - 21,492 20,239 
(Full year 

equivalent 
18,264) 

Archibald Campbell, Chair of 
Sustainable Development until 5th 

Feb 2014 

18,142 
(Full year 

equivalent 
18,447) 

- 18,142 18,051 
(Full year 

equivalent 
18,264) 

Kenneth Murray, Chair of 
Environment & Protective 
Services 

18,447 - 18,447 17,871 
(Full year 

equivalent 
18,264) 
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Name and Responsibility 

2013/14 2012/13 
Salary, fees & 
Allowances 

Taxable 
Expenses 

Total 
Remuneration 

Total 
Remuneration 

£ £ £ £
Angus McCormack, Chair of 
Audit and Scrutiny 

18,447 - 18,447 17,866
(Full year 

equivalent 
18,264) 

Alasdair Macleod, Chair of 
Sustainable Development from 5th 

Feb 2014

16,713 
(Full year 

equivalent 
£18,447) 

- 16,713 14,619
(Full year 

equivalent 
16,234) 

Roddie Mackay, Vice Chair of 
Policy & Resources 

18,447 - 18,447 17,866
(Full year 

equivalent 
18,264) 

Total 177,961 - 177,961 170,925

Note 1 – Includes the allowance for being the Vice Convenor of the Highland and Western Isles Joint Valuation Board which was refunded by Highland 
Council (£3,045 in 2013/14, £2,368 in 2012/13) 

Note 2 – In 2012/13 the year on year reduction for some positions reflects the initial days of the new Comhairle, prior to Councillors being elected to senior 
positions 

Total Remuneration paid to Councillors 

The Comhairle paid the following salaries, allowances and expenses to all Councillors (including those included above) 
during the year: 

Type of Remuneration 2013/14
 £ 

2012/13
£ 

Salaries 535,627 521,138

Allowances 30,194 31,536

Expenses 95,283 112,314

Total 661,104 664,988

Full details of Councillors’ salaries and expenses for 2013/14 are included in Note 28 of the Annual Accounts and can also 
be viewed on the Comhairle website at www.cne-siar.gov.uk 

Senior Employees 

A senior employee is any employee who meets one or more of the following criteria: 

 who has responsibility for the management of the local authority to the extent that the person has power to direct
or control the major activities of the authority whether solely or collectively with other persons;

 who holds a post that is politically restricted by reason of section 2(1)(a), (b) or (c ) of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989;

 whose annual remuneration, including any annual remuneration from a local authority subsidiary body is
£150,000 or more.

Employees who fall into the first two categories (for the Comhairle these are the Chief Executive and the Service Directors) 
must be disclosed, irrespective of the value of their remuneration. 

Name and Responsibility 

2013/14 2012/13 
Salary, fees 

& 
Allowances 

Taxable 
Expenses 

Total
Remuneration 

Total 
Remuneration 

£ £ £ £
Malcolm Burr, Chief Executive 99,936 - 99,936 98,988 
Calum Iain Maciver, Director of 
Development 

76,348 - 76,348 75,624

Iain Macaulay, Director of Social & 
Community Services 

76,348 - 76,348 75,624

Iain Mackinnon, Director of 
Technical Services 

76,348 - 76,348 75,624 

Robert Emmott, Director of Finance 
& Corporate Resources 

76,348 - 76,348 75,624

Peter Carpenter, Director of 
Education & Children’s Services from

08/04/13

74,903 
(Full year 

equivalent 
76,348) 

- 74,903 -
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Name and Responsibility 

2013/14 2012/13 
Salary, fees 

& 
Allowances 

Taxable 
Expenses 

Total 
Remuneration 

Total 
Remuneration 

£ £ £ £
Lesley McDonald, Head of 
Executive Office (Monitoring 
Officer) 

53,667 - 53,667 53,165

Katherine Mackinnon, Head of 
Human Resources 

53,667 - 53,667 53,151

Alasdair MacEachan, Head of Uist 
& Barra Services Note 1 

22,197 - 22,197 54,434

Joan Mackinnon, Director of 
Education & Children’s Services until 

28/12/12

- - - 57,062
(Full Year 
equivalent 

£75,609) 

Total 609,762 - 609,762 619,296

Note 1 – Began flexible retirement from 1 April 2013 

Subsidiary Bodies 

Name and Responsibility 

2013/14 2012/13 
Salary, fees 

& 
Allowances 

Taxable 
Expenses 

Total 
Remuneration 

Total 
Remuneration 

£ £ £ £
Martin Joyce, Head of Operations, 
Sgoiltean Ura LLP until 03/10/12 

- - - 37,076

PENSION BENEFITS 

Pension benefits for councillors and local government employees are provided through the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS).  

Councillors’ pension benefits are based on career average pay.  The Councillors’ pay for each year or part year ending 
31 March (other than the pay in the final year commencing 1 April) is increased by the increase in the cost of living, as 
measured by the appropriate index (or indices) between the end of that year and the last day of the month in which their 
membership of the scheme ends.  The total of the revalued pay is then divided by the period of membership to calculate 
the career average pay.  This is the value used to calculate the pension benefits. 

For local government employees this is a final salary pension scheme.  This means that pension benefits are based on the 
final year’s pay and the number of years that person has been a member of the scheme.  The scheme’s normal retirement 
age for both Councillors and employees is 65.  

From 1 April 2009 a five tier contribution system was introduced with contributions from scheme members being based on 
how much pay falls into each tier.  This is designed to give more equality between the cost and benefits of scheme 
membership.  Prior to 2009 contributions rates were set at 6% for all non manual employees.  

The tiers and members contribution rates are as 
follows: Whole time pay  

Contribution rate 
2012/13

On earnings up to and including £19,400  5.5%
On earnings above £19,400 and up to £23,700 7.25%
On earnings above £23,700 and up to £32,500 8.5%
On earnings above £32,500 and up to £43,300 9.5%
On earnings above £43,300 12% 

The tiers and members contribution rates are as 
follows: Whole time pay  

Contribution rate 
2013/14

On earnings up to and including £19,800  5.5%
On earnings above £19,800 and up to £24,200 7.25%
On earnings above £24,200 and up to £33,200 8.5%
On earnings above £33,200 and up to £44,200 9.5%
On earnings above £44,200 12% 
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Senior Councillors and Convenors of Joint Boards 

The pension entitlements for Senior Councillors for the year to 31 March 2014 are shown in the following table, together 
with the contribution made by the Comhairle to their pension during the year. 

Name and Responsibility 

In-year pension 
contributions 

Accrued Pension Benefits 

Year to  
31 March 

2014 

Year to 
31 March 

2013 

As at 
31 March 

2014 

Difference 
from March 

2013 
£ £ £ £

Angus Campbell, Leader of 
the Comhairle 

4,876 4,802 Pension
Lump Sum 

5,000 
8,000 

- 
- 

Norman A Macdonald, 
Convenor 

3,657 3,301 Pension
Lump Sum 

1,000 
- 

1,000 
- 

Catriona Stewart, Chair of 
Education and Children’s 
Services 

3,291 3,217 Pension
Lump Sum 

2,000 
1,000 

- 
- 

John Mackay, Chair of 
Transportation 

3,291 3,217 Pension
Lump Sum 

2,000 
1,000 

- 
- 

Kenneth Murray, Chair of 
Environment & Protective 
Services 

3,291 3,217 Pension
Lump Sum 

2,000 
1,000 

- 
- 

Roddie Mackay, Vice Chair 
of Policy & Resources 

3,291 3,216 Pension
Lump Sum 

2,000 
1,000 

- 
- 

Total 21,697 20,970 26,000 1,000

Note:  In 2013/14 the Chairs of Sustainable Development and Audit and Scrutiny were not pensioned 

Senior Employees 

The pension entitlements of Senior Employees for the year to 31 March 2014 are shown in the table below, together with 
the contribution made by the Comhairle to their pension during the year. 

Name and Responsibility 

In-year pension 
contributions 

Accrued Pension Benefits 

Year to
31 March 

2014 

Year to
31 March 

2013 

As at 
31 March 

2014 

Difference 
from March 

2013 
£ £ £ £

Malcolm Burr, Chief Executive 17,988 17,818 Pension 
Lump Sum 

32,000 
70,000 

2,000 
1,000 

Calum Iain Maciver, Director of 
Development 

13,742 13,612 Pension 
Lump Sum 

21,000 
44,000 

1,000 
1,000 

Iain Macaulay, Director of Social & 
Community Services 

13,742 13,612 Pension 
Lump Sum 

35,000 
87,000 

1,000 
1,000 

Iain Mackinnon, Director of 
Technical Services 

13,742 13,612 Pension 
Lump Sum 

29,000 
68,000 

2,000 
1,000 

Robert Emmott, Director of Finance 
& Corporate Resources 

13,742 13,612 Pension 
Lump Sum 

21,000 
44,000 

1,000 
- 

Peter Carpenter, Director of 
Education & Children’s Services from

08/04/13

13,482 
(Full year 

equivalent 
13,742) 

- Pension 
Lump Sum 

36,000 
- 

- 
- 

Lesley Macdonald, Head of 
Executive Office (Monitoring Officer) 

9,660 9,567 Pension
Lump Sum 

15,000 
32,000 

1,000 
- 

Katherine Mackinnon, Head of 
Human Resources 

9,660 9,567 Pension
Lump Sum 

21,000 
49,000 

1,000 
- 

Alasdair MacEachan, Head of Uist & 
Barra Services Note 1 

3,995 9,775 Pension
Lump Sum 

- 
- 

(26,000) 
(69,000) 

Joan Mackinnon, Director of 
Education & Children’s Services until 

28/12/12

- 8,358 Pension
Lump Sum 

- 
- 

(34,000) 
(103,000) 

Total 109,753 109,533 604,000 (219,000)

Note 1 – Began flexible retirement from 1 April 2013 
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

1. General Principles 

 The Annual Accounts have been prepared on an Income and Expenditure basis in accordance with the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.  The service headings under which the expenditure is 
analysed in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are those recommended by the Service Reporting 
Code of Practice.  The accounts have been prepared under the historic cost convention, other than changes resulting 
from the revaluation of certain categories of fixed assets and the valuation of financial investments and pension 
liabilities. 

 
2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
 Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received.  In 

particular:  

 Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the date the service or goods are 
provided; 

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed.  Where there is a gap between the date 
supplies are received and their use, they are carried as stock on the Balance Sheet; 

 Works are charged as expenditure when completed, before which they are carried as work in progress; and 

 Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or 
creditor for the corresponding amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. 

 
3. Financing Costs 
 
 A loans fund is operated by the Comhairle under Schedule 3 Paragraph 12, of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 

1975, to finance capital expenditure.  Advances are recovered by a combination of equal annual instalments on debt 
incurred pre March 1999, and annuity on debt incurred since 1 April 1999, which approximate to the estimated life of 
the asset concerned.  No annual instalment is recharged by the loans fund in the year in which the capital expenditure 
is incurred.  Interest is recharged on the basis of debt outstanding on each account as at the start of the financial year 
with a proportionate adjustment in respect of new advances during the year.  The expenses of managing the portfolio 
of debt have been apportioned on the same basis. 

 
4. Financial Instruments  
 
 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset for one entity and a financial liability for another.  

The extent to which this impacts on the Comhairle’s accounts is as follows: 
 
 Financial Liabilities (borrowings, creditors and guarantees) – these are initially measured at fair value and carried 

at their amortised cost.  Annual charges for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied 
by the effective interest rate.  This means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal 
repayable plus accrued interest. 

 
 Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement, except where repurchase has taken place as 
part of a restructuring that involves the modification or exchange of existing loans.  In such cases, the premium or 
discount is reflected in the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and written down to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement over the life of the loan.  Where premiums and discounts have been charged in this 
manner, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund to be spread over future years, through the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account. 

 
 Financial Assets (investment, loans, debtors) – these are initially measured at fair value and carried at their 

amortised cost.  Annual credits for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset, multiplied by the 
effective interest rate.  This means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal 
receivable plus accrued interest.  The long term investment in respect of An Lanntair is valued at cost less 
depreciation.  Due to the nature of the investment this valuation is deemed more appropriate than market value. 

 
 The Comhairle has made some loans at below market rates to a variety of borrowers, mainly for the purposes of 

supporting businesses.  Such lending is classified as “soft” loans.  These are included within Long Term Debtors in the 
Balance Sheet.  They are initially measured at amortised cost and provision is made for any potential non-payment.  
The Comhairle applies de-minimus principles to low value advances or where there has not been a significant 
discounting of interest rates when determining whether to restate at fair value. 

 
 Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due under the 

contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the relevant service or the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account.  The impairment loss 
is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows 
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. 
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 Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account. 

 
5. Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under statute 
 
 This is expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but which does not 

result in the creation of a fixed asset, as the costs have been charged to the relevant service revenue account.  Any 
such charges are reversed out in the Movement in Reserves Statement so there is no impact on the level of the council 
tax.  These are generally capital grants paid to community bodies to part fund specific projects and are permitted under 
Scottish Government Circular 03/2009. 
 

6. Capital Expenditure 
 

All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of fixed assets is capitalised on an accruals basis, 
providing the fixed asset yields benefit for more than one year to the Comhairle and the services it provides.  Routine 
repairs and maintenance of fixed assets is charged directly to service revenue accounts. 

 
7. Government Grants and Contributions  
  

Grants and third party contributions are recognised as due to the Comhairle when there is reasonable assurance that 
conditions attached to the payments are complied with or the payment has been received amounts are not credited to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement until any conditions are met.  Where conditions have not been 
satisfied, monies are carried as creditors in the Balance Sheet, and credited to the relevant service line (revenue 
grants) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring fenced revenue grants and capital grants).  Where capital 
grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement they are reversed out in the Movement 
in Reserves Statement, as these should not affect the General Fund balance. 

 
8. Inventory 
 
 The Code requires stocks to be valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.  Stocks and stores held by the 

Comhairle at the year end are valued at average cost price.  This does not have a material effect on the figures 
disclosed in the accounts. 

 
9. Property, Plant and Equipment 
  

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to 
others or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are 
classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 
Recognition  
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an 
accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the 
item will flow to the Comhairle and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does 
not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is 
charged as an expense when it is incurred. 
 
Measurement  
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:  

 the purchase price; and 

 any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management. 

 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value.  The valuation of work-in-progress is 
based on cost plus an appropriate proportion of overheads, together with attributable profits and allowances for 
foreseeable losses. 
 
Plant, furniture and computer equipment costing less than £10,000 are not treated as fixed assets but are charged to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  This de-minimus level does not apply where certain 
categories of these assets are grouped together and form part of the approved capital programme.  
 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

 infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated historical cost; and 

 all other assets – fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use.  
Operational assets are shown at the lower of net current replacement cost or net realisable value in existing 
use.  Non-operational assets are shown at the lower of net current replacement cost or net realisable value.  

 
Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated 
replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.  
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Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying 
amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end.  From 2006/07 the Comhairle moved to a system 
of valuing a percentage of land and buildings on a rolling basis annually, rather than carrying out an evaluation every 
five years.  Valuations are undertaken by the District Valuer, in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered 
Surveyors Appraisal and Valuation Manual and having regard to the supplementary guidance provided by CIPFA.  
Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains.  The 
Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal 
implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.  

 
Impairment 
 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.  Where 
indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the 
shortfall.  Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:  

 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of 
the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains); and 

 where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against 
the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation 
that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.  

 
Disposals 
 

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale transaction 
rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale.  The asset is revalued immediately 
before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Where there is a 
subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any 
previously losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services.  Depreciation is not charged on Assets 
Held for Sale.  Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.  
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether 
Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  Receipts from disposals, if 
any, are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or 
loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains 
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.  
 
Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and are credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, 
and can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Comhairle’s underlying need to borrow 
(the capital financing requirement).  Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 
Depreciation  
 

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their 
depreciable amounts over their useful lives.  An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life 
(.i.e. freehold land), investment properties and assets that are not yet available for use (.i.e. assets under construction).  
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:  

 dwellings and other buildings – straight-line allocation over the estimated useful life of the property (30 to 60 
years*); 

 vehicles, plant and equipment – straight-line allocation over the useful economic life of the asset (up to 20 
years); 

 infrastructure – straight-line allocation over the estimated useful life of the asset (20 to 60 years); 

 leased assets – straight-line allocation over the period of the lease; 

 Community assets – straight-line allocation over 20 years; and 

 Landfill Sites – straight-line allocation over estimated useful life. 
 

* For schools built as part of the Western Isles Schools Programme the estimated useful life of some of the 
components, such as the main structure, is 80 years.  
 
General Fund services are charged with depreciation, where appropriate, for the use of assets no matter how they are 
financed.  Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is significant in relation 
to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. 
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10. Heritage Assets 
 

The Museum’s collections of Heritage Assets are held in support of the primary objective of documenting and 
interpreting the archaeology and history of the Outer Hebrides, its Gaelic culture, traditions and the crofting way of life.  
The principal collection is in the field of social history, with holdings ranging across a number of themes: agriculture, 
domestic life, tweed and cloth production, fishing and maritime life and island crafts.  The Museum also holds strong 
collections reflecting the rich archaeological past of the islands, civic archive and important postal history materials.  Its 
visual arts collections are small, reflecting the limited place of the pictorial arts of the local culture in the past. 
 
Detailed policies and procedures for conservation, loans, collections care, security, documentation, entry, acquisition, 
movement & control cataloguing and exit can be found at www.cne-siar.gov.uk  The collections are valued by a 
combination of fair values as determined by the Museum Conservation Officer, Insurance Values, and Market Values 
as determined by an external valuer.  The collections are accounted for as follows: 
 
Paintings 
 
Paintings are valued at market value by an external valuer, Rupert Maas, and are deemed to have undetermined lives 
and a high residual value so it is not considered appropriate to charge depreciation.  Acquisitions are made by 
purchase or donation.  Purchases are recorded at cost and donations at fair value ascertained by the Museum’s 
curatorial team with reference to commercial markets using recent transaction information from auctions where 
available. 

 
Social History and Contemporary Artefacts 
 
Obtaining an external valuation for the collections of artefacts would involve disproportionate cost because of the 
diverse nature of the assets held and the lack of comparable market values and so the initial measurement of these 
artefacts, carried out by the Museum Conservation Officer, is at fair value.  The exceptions to this are where items are 
purchased and are recorded at cost or are donated and the Museum’s Curator is able to estimate current value.  The 
artefacts are deemed to have an undetermined lives and a high residual value and so it is not considered appropriate 
to charge depreciation.  
 
Archaeological Artefacts 
 
Obtaining an external valuation for the collections of artefacts would involve disproportionate cost because of the 
diverse nature of the assets held and the lack of comparable market values and so the initial measurement, carried out 
by the Museum Conservation Officer, is at fair value.  The artefacts are deemed to have an undetermined lives and a 
high residual value and so it is not considered appropriate to charge depreciation. 

 
Archives 
 
Occasionally where an item is of doubtful provenance or is unsuitable for public display it may be disposed of.  
Proceeds are reported in the Income and Expenditure Account and are disclosed in the notes to the accounts.  
Purchases are recorded at cost and donations at fair value ascertained by the Museum’s curatorial team.  Items are 
deemed to have an undetermined lives and a high residual value and so it is not considered appropriate to charge 
depreciation. 

 
Regalia 
 
The valuation of the chains of office was carried out by an external jewellery assessor and is based on replacement 
cost.  The valuation of the swords was carried out by the conservation officer based on discussions with and 
information provided by the manufacturer and militaria auctioneers and also reflect the rarity value, as a sword of peace 
has never come up for public sale.  These items are not depreciated as their value is likely to increase with the 
passage of time. 

 
11. Intangible Assets 
 

Expenditure on assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the Comhairle as a result of past 
events are capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible 
asset to the Comhairle.  Note 11 to the Accounts gives details of the Comhairle’s intangible assets which consist of 
software licences and Fishing Quota. 
 
Intangible Assets are recognised initially at cost.  Amounts are revalued annually where the fair value of the assets can 
be determined by reference to an active market.  Fishing Quota meets this criterion.  The depreciable amount of an 
intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service lines in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement.  Similarly, any impairment is also charged to the relevant service.  Any gain or loss on disposal 
is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, amortisation and other 
gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance.  These are therefore reversed out 
to the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts 
Reserve. 
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12. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions on an instant access basis. Cash 
equivalents are investments that mature in three months or less from the balance sheet date and that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 

 
13. Allocation of Support Services Costs 
 
 Support Services costs, such as Finance, Legal and Technical Services, have been charged to service users by 

identifying the costs of each element of the Support Services and charging them on the basis of known or estimated 
usage.  Costs relating to Corporate and Democratic Core (costs arising from the Comhairle’s status as a democratic 
organisation e.g. Members allowances) and Non Distributed costs (discretionary retirement benefits and impairment of 
non-operational properties) are accounted for as separate headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

 
14. Provisions 
 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that places an obligation on the Comhairle that is likely to require 
a financial settlement, but where the timing and actual value of the settlement are uncertain.  Provisions are charged to 
the appropriate service revenue account in the year that the Comhairle becomes aware of the obligation and actual 
payments in settlement are charged directly to the provision in the Balance Sheet.  Details are given in Note 18. 

  
15. Contingent Assets and Liabilities 
    

Contingent Assets and Liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements, but are disclosed as a note to the 
accounts where they are deemed material. 

 
16. Provisions for Bad and Doubtful Debts 
 

Separate provisions have been made for bad and doubtful debtors under the headings: 

 Community Charge 

 Council Tax 

 Sundry Debtors  

 Business loans 

 Charges on Properties 
 

 The source for these provisions is the appropriate Income Account with regard to Community Charge, Council Tax, and 
Non-Domestic Rates and the various service accounts on the basis of throughput for sundry debtors and charges on 
properties.  

     
17. Leases 
 
 Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 

incidental to ownership of the property from the lessor to the lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases.  
 
The Authority as Lessee 
 
Operating Leases - rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment.  Charges are 
made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (eg, there is 
a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).  The main assets leased by the Comhairle are vehicles, plant 
and property.  The risks and rewards of ownership, along with the title of the assets, remain with the lessor. 
 
Finance Leases – property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the minimum 
lease payments, if lower).  The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor.  Initial 
direct costs of the Authority are added to the carrying amount of the asset.  Premiums paid on entry into a lease are 
applied to writing down the lease liability.  Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they 
incurred. 
 
Lease payments are apportioned between: 

 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to write down the lease 
liability; and 

 a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement). 

 

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies applied generally to 
such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated 
useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the Authority at the end of the lease period). 
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The Authority is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses arising on 
leased assets.  Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed capital 
investment in accordance with statutory requirements.  Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are 
therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with 
the Capital Adjustment Account in Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 
 
The Authority as Lessor 
 
Operating Leases – where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, 
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet.  Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the 
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the 
lease).  Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the 
relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
 
Finance Leases – where the Authority grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal.  At the commencement of the lease, the carrying 
amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written 
off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal.  A gain, representing the Authority’s net investment in the lease is credited to the same line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off 
against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the 
Balance Sheet. 
 
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 

 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down the lease debtor (together with 
any premiums received); and 

 finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement). 

 
The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not permitted by statute to 
increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capital receipt.  Where a premium has been 
received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement.  Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future 
financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement.   
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully provided 
for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment 
Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 

18. Employee Benefits 
 

Benefits Payable during Employment – benefits due to be settled within 12 months of the year end.  These include 
wages and salaries, paid annual leave, sick leave and bonuses.  An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements 
due to employees but not taken before the year end.  This is charged to services but then reversed out through the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged in the year they occur. 
 
Termination Benefits – these are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Comhairle to terminate an officer’s 
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy.  These are 
charged to Non Distributed Costs in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Comhairle is 
demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment of an officer or making an offer to encourage voluntary 
redundancy.  
 
Where termination benefits involve enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Fund to be 
charged with the amount payable to the pension fund or employee in the year, not the amount payable under relevant 
accounting standards. 

 
 Post Employment Benefits 
 

The Comhairle participates in two pension schemes, The Local Government Pension Scheme which is administered by 
The Highland Council, and the Teachers Scheme, both of which provide defined benefits to members.  However, the 
liabilities of the Teachers Scheme cannot be identified specifically to the Comhairle, therefore the scheme is accounted 
for as if it were a defined contributions scheme.  The Comhairle does not recognise assets or liabilities related to the 
scheme, as the liability for payment of pensions rests ultimately with the Scottish Government. 
 
Teachers’ Pension Scheme - this is an unfunded scheme administered by the Scottish Government who sets the 
contribution rate based on a notional fund.  The amounts included in the accounts are the contributions due in the year.  
In addition the cost of pension enhancements for early retirement are included in non-distributable costs.  The scheme 
is exempt from International Accounting Standard 19 (IAS19) as the assets and liabilities of the scheme cannot be 
reliably attributed to participating authorities. 
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Local Government Pension Scheme - Pensions for other employees are accounted for in accordance with IAS19.  
The Comhairle has disclosed certain information regarding assets, liabilities, income and expenditure relating to the 
pension scheme.  IAS 19 requires that an organisation must account for retirement benefits when it is committed to 
giving them, even if the giving will be many years in the future.  

 
  The liabilities of the fund attributable to the Comhairle are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the 

projected unit method i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits 
earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates and projections of 
earnings for current employees.  Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices using a discount rate of 4.3% 
based on the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds. 

 
  The assets of the fund attributable to the Comhairle are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value, principally the 

bid price for quoted securities, and estimated fair value for unquoted securities. 
 
 The change in the net pension liability is also recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Current service costs, which represent the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year are 
charged to the relevant service line and past service cost, which relate to adjustments relating to previous years are 
charged to Non Distributed Costs. Net interest on the defined benefit liability is charged to the Financing and 
Investment Income line. Re-measurements, comprising of the return on scheme assets and actuarial gains and losses 
arising from differences in assumptions compared to actual events, are charged to the Pension Reserve as Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.  

 
 Statutory provisions require that the amount charged to the General Fund is the actual amount paid by the Comhairle 

during the year and not the amount calculated using accounting standards. This is adjusted through the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and the Pension Reserve. 

 
19. Significant Trading Operations   

 
The Local Government Scotland Act 2003 required Local Authorities to report “separately on significant trading 
operations”.  Each Significant Trading Operation must break even over a rolling three year period.  During 2013/14 
none of the trading operations were classified as significant.  
 

20. Reserves 
    

The Comhairle has a number of Reserve Funds.  The Capital Fund represents proceeds from the disposal of assets 
and may be used to finance capital expenditure or the repayment of debt.  The Capital Receipts Reserve is the 
proceeds from the sale of fixed assets and is available to meet future capital investment. 
 
The Capital Adjustment Account and the Revaluation Reserve are used to manage the accounting processes for non-
current assets and do not represent usable resources for the Comhairle.  The former accounts for the timing 
differences arising from the accounting arrangements for the consumption of non-current assets and the financing of 
the acquisition, construction and enhancement of these assets, and the latter holds the gains arising from increases in 
the value of fixed assets. 
 
The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account is used to account for the differences in statutory requirements and 
proper accounting practices in respect of borrowing.  This account is used by the Comhairle mainly to manage the 
premiums paid of the early redemption of long term loans. 
 
The Pensions Reserve recognises the Comhairle’s share of the actuarial gains and losses on The Highland Council 
Pension Fund and the change in the Comhairle’s share of fund’s net liability chargeable to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. 

 
21. Events after the Reporting Period 
 

These are events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date 
when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. An adjustment is made to the statements where there is 
evidence that the event relates to the reporting period, otherwise the statements are not adjusted, and where the 
amount is material, a disclosure is made in the notes. 

 
22.  Prior Period Adjustments and Changes in Accounting Policy 
  

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policy or to correct a material error. Changes 
in accounting policy are applied retrospectively by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior 
period as if the new policy had always been applied. Material errors identified in prior period figures are corrected 
retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

  
23. VAT 
 

Income and Expenditure excludes any amount related to VAT, as this is payable or recoverable to/from HM Revenue 
and Customs. 
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

2013/14 General 
Fund

Capital 
Fund

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve

Total 
Usable 

Reserves
Unusable 
Reserves

Total 
Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2013 22,764 1,181 124 900 24,969 57,219 82,188

Surplus/(deficit) on provision of 
services (accounting basis) 3,498 -             -                   -               3,498 -                3,498
Other Comprehensive I & E Items -               -           -                 -             -               (13,619) (13,619)

Total Comprehensive I & E 3,498 -           -                 -             3,498 (13,619) (10,121)

Adjustments between accounting basis 
and funding basis under regulation 
(Note 5) (7,462) (1,025) 161 (856) (9,182) 9,182 -                

Net Increase/(Decrease) before 
transfers to other Statutory Reserves (3,964) (1,025) 161 (856) (5,684) (4,437) (10,121)

Balance at 31 March 2014 18,800 156 285 44 19,285 52,782 72,067

2012/13 Comparative Figures 
(Restated)

General 
Fund

Capital 
Fund

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve

Total 
Usable 

Reserves
Unusable 
Reserves

Total 
Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2012 18,175 1,306 266 817 20,564 68,754 89,318

Surplus/(deficit) on provision of 
services (accounting basis) (13,466) -             -                   -               (13,466) -                (13,466)
Other Comprehensive I & E Items -               -           -                 -             -               6,336 6,336

Total Comprehensive I & E (13,466) -           -                 -             (13,466) 6,336 (7,130)

Adjustments between accounting basis 
and funding basis under regulation 
(Note 5) 18,055 (125) (142) 83             17,871 (17,871) -                

Net Increase/(Decrease) before 
transfers to other Statutory Reserves 4,589 (125) (142) 83 4,405 (11,535) (7,130)

Balance at 31 March 2013 22,764 1,181 124 900 24,969 57,219 82,188

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Comhairle, analysed into "usable reserves"
(those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the
Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing services, more details of which are shown in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the
General Fund for council tax setting purposes. The net increase/decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows
the statutory General Fund balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the
Comhairle.
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

Gross 
Expend

Gross 
Income

Net 
Expend

Gross 
Expend

Gross 
Income

Net 
Expend

£'000 £'000 £'000 Service £'000 £'000 £'000

67,802 (3,142) 64,660 Education Services 46,889 (3,113) 43,776

8,520 (6,716) 1,804 General Fund Housing 8,577 (7,022) 1,555

8,756 (1,819) 6,937 Cultural & Related Services 5,765 (1,502) 4,263

10,484 (2,100) 8,384 Environmental Services 10,110 (1,959) 8,151

12,028 (789) 11,239 Roads & Transport Services 11,681 (585) 11,096

7,632 (3,285) 4,347 Planning & Development Services 8,113 (4,174) 3,939

28,752 (4,694) 24,058 Social Work 32,049 (4,816) 27,233

2,836 (64) 2,772 Corporate & Democratic Core 2,803 (18) 2,785

433                    -   433 Non Distributed Costs 957              -   957

1,433 (250) 1,183 Central Services to the Public 1,267 (242) 1,025

2,518 (2,222) 296 Trading Services 2,596 (2,185) 411

4,881 (216) 4,665 Joint Board Requisitions 327              -   327

156,075 (25,297) 130,778 Cost of Services 131,134 (25,616) 105,518

987 (965) 22 Other Operating Expenditure (Note 6) 1,433 (985) 448

12,731 (1,452) 11,279 Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure (Note 7) 12,410 (283) 12,127

          -   (128,613) (128,613) Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income (Note 8)              -   (121,591) (121,591)

169,793 (156,327) 13,466 (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services 144,977 (148,475) (3,498)

(560) (Surplus)/Deficit on Revaluation of Fixed Assets (Note 19) (375)

(5,776) Remeasurement of the Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) (Note35) 13,994

(6,336) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 13,619

7,130 Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 10,121

2012/13 (Restated) 2013/14

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. The Comhairle raises taxation to cover expenditure in accordance
with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. Note 5 to the Accounts gives details on the adjustments between the statutory and funding basis.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000 

(13,466) Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services 3,498

39,007
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements 
(Note 23) 21,785

25,541 Net cash flows from Operating Activities (Note 20) 25,283

(30,095) Investing Activities (Note 21) (18,109)

(1,615) Financing Activities (Note 22) (2,588)

(6,169) Net (increase)/decrease in cash and cash equivalents 4,586

16,532 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 10,363

10,363 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (Note 15) 14,949

(6,169) 4,586

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Comhairle during the reporting period. The
statement shows how these are generated and used, by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The
amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Comhairle
are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services. Investing activities represent the extent to which
cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to future service delivery. Cash flows arising from
financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Comhairle.
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NOTE 1 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED 

The code requires the disclosure of information relating to the impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new 
standard that has been issued but not yet adopted. The Code requires implementation from April 2014 and there is therefore 
on impact on the 2013/14 Accounts. This applies to the adoption of the following new or amended standards within the 
2014/15 Code: 

 IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
 IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
 IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
 IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (deferred until 2015/16)
 IAS 1   Presentation of Financial Statements (as amended in May 2011)
 IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as amended in May 2011)
 IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as amended in May 2011)
 IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation (as amended in December 2011)

IFRS10, IFRS11, IFRS12, IAS27 and IAS28 all relate specifically to the Group accounts and include a change to the definition 
of control, which will require consideration of joint arrangement, a reassessment of group boundary and potentially further 
disclosure.  IAS32 outlines disclosure requirements in respect of off-setting financial assets and liabilities.  Overall, these 
changes are not expected to have a significant impact on the Accounts. 

NOTE 2 CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

In applying the accounting policies the Comhairle has had to make certain judgements about complex transactions or those 
involving uncertainty about future events.  The main judgement made in the statements is in respect of the levels of future 
funding.  There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government.  However, the Comhairle 
has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that assets might be impaired as a result of the 
need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision. 

NOTE 3 ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 
UNCERTAINTY 

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Comhairle about the future 
or that are otherwise uncertain.  Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other 
relevant factors.  However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different 
from the assumptions and estimates. 

The items in the Comhairle’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2014 for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment in the 
forthcoming financial year are as follows: 

Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from 
assumptions 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

Assets are depreciated over useful lives 
that are dependent on assumptions about 
the level of repairs and maintenance that 
will be incurred in relation to individual 
assets.  The current economic climate 
makes it difficult for the Comhairle to 
sustain its current spending on repairs and 
maintenance, bringing into doubt the useful 
lives assigned to assets. 

If the useful life of the asset is reduced, 
depreciation increases and the carrying 
amount of the assets falls. It is estimated 
that the annual depreciation charge for 
buildings would increase by £217k for 
every year that useful lives had to be 
reduced. 

Pension Liability Estimation of the net liability to pay 
pensions depends on a number of complex 
judgments relating to the discount rate 
used, the rate at which salaries are 
projected to increase, changes in 
retirement ages, mortality rates and 
expected returns on pension fund assets. 
A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to 
provide the Comhairle with expert advice 
about the assumptions to be applied. 

The effects on the net pension liability of 
changes in individual assumptions can be 
measured.  However the assumptions 
interact in complex ways.  During 2013/14 
the actuaries advised that the net pensions 
liability had increased by £20m compared 
to a reduction of £0.4m the previous year, 
attributable to updating of the assumptions. 

Arrears At 31 March 2014 Comhairle had a 
balance of sundry debtors for £3.8m.  An 
allowance for bad and doubtful debts of 
£1.2m of the balance outstanding has been 
provided using the aged debt profile as the 
basis.  The calculation is based on 
assumed percentage recovery rates and 
this can vary, particularly when the 
economic climate is not good. 

Given the amount of outstanding debt 
which is secured against property and the 
current economic climate, the level of 
provision may not be sufficient.  However, 
the extent of the provision means that a 
significant portion of the debt is covered. 

NOTE 4   MATERIAL ITEMS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 

Where items are not disclosed on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the nature and amount 
of material items must be disclosed.  There are no material items that are not already disclosed for 2012/13 or 2013/14. 

38



NOTE 5   ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

2013/14

General 
Fund 

Balances

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied
Capital 

Fund
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account
Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement

Depreciation of non-current assets (11,562) - - - 11,562
Amortisation of Investments (15) - - - 15
Revaluation losses and Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment (3,334) -              - - 3,334
Amortisation of Intangible Assets (28) -              - - 28
Capital Grants and Contributions Applied 11,254 (11,254)
Revenue funded from capital under statute (2,734) -              - - 2,734
Gain/Loss on disposal of non-current assets (630) -              - - 630
Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement

Statutory provision for financing of capital investment 10,581 - - - (10,581)
Capital expenditure charged against General Fund 8,931 -              - - (8,931)

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account
Grants and contributions unapplied credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 264 - (264) - - 
Application of grants transferred to Capital Adjustment Account - - 103              - (103)

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of gain/loss 251           (251) - - - 

Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure -              1,107      - - (1,107)

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Fund

Use of Capital Fund to finance new capital expenditure -              -              - 1,025        (1,025)

Adjustments primarily involving Financial Instruments Adjustment 
Account

Amount by which finance costs charged to CI&E are different from costs 
charged in accordance with statute 386 - - - (386)

Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits (5,494) - - - 5,494

Reversal of Teachers Pension Liability adjustment (511) -              - - 511

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account
Amount by which remuneration charged to CI&E on an accruals basis is 
different from that chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory 
requirements 103 - - - (103)

Total Adjustments 7,462 856 (161) 1,025        (9,182)

Usable Reserves
Movement in 

Unusable 
Reserves

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the Comhairle 
in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being 
available to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.
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2012/13

General 
Fund 

Balances

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied
Capital 

Fund

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account
Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement

Depreciation of non-current assets (11,637) -               - - 11,637
Amortisation of Investments (14) -               - - 14
Revaluation losses and Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment (22,617) -               - - 22,617
Amortisation of Intangible Assets (27) -               - - 27
Capital Grants and Contributions Applied 12,082 -               - - (12,082)
Revenue funded from capital under statute (1,524) -               - - 1,524 
Gain/Loss on disposal of non-current assets (85) -               - - 85
Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement

Statutory provision for financing of capital investment 10,674 -               (10,674)
Capital expenditure charged against General Fund - -               - - - 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied 
Account
Grants and contributions unapplied credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement 40 -               (40) - - 
Application of grants transferred to Capital Adjustment Account - -               182               - (182)

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of gain/loss 83              (83) - - - 
Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure - -               - - - 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Fund
Use of Capital Fund to finance new capital expenditure - -               - 125             (125)

Adjustments primarily involving Financial Instruments Adjustment 
Account
Amount by which finance costs charged to CI&E are different from 
costs charged in accordance with statute 391 -               - - (391)

Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits (5,597) -               - - 5,597
Reversal of Teachers Pension Liability adjustment 173 -               - - (173)

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences 
Account
Amount by which remuneration charged to CI&E on an accruals basis 
is different from that chargeable in the year in accordance with 
statutory requirements 3 -               - - (3)

Total Adjustments (18,055) (83) 142 125             17,871

Usable Reserves
Movement in 

Unusable 
Reserves
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NOTE 6 OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000 

20 Trading Operations 69
2 Gains/Losses on disposal of non-current assets 379

22 448

NOTE 7  FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000 

9,632 Interest payable and similar charges 9,626
3,099 Pension interest costs and expected return on pension assets 2,784

(1,452) Interest receivable and similar income (283)

11,279 12,127

NOTE 8 TAXATION AND NON SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000 

(10,478) Council Tax income (9,056)
(6,039) Non Domestic Rates (6,678)

(101,499) General Revenue Grant (97,073)
(10,598) Capital grants and contributions (8,784)

(128,613) (121,591)
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NOTE 9   PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Other Land 
and 

Buildings

Vehicles, 
Plant & 

Equipment
Infra-

structure
Community 

Assets
Surplus 
Assets

Assets Under 
Construction

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2013 169,942 27,002 156,567 716 148 7,663 362,038
Additions 8,299 1,543 4,610 6 -              6,035 20,493
Donations - - -             - -              - -
Revaluation increases recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve (358) - -               - -              - (358)
Revaluation (decreases) in the surplus/(deficit) on the 
provision of services) (3,442) - -               - -              - (3,442)
Derecognition - disposals - (39) -             - - - (39)
Derecognition - other (351) (1,354) (927) - -              (54) (2,686)
Assets reclassified (to)/from held for sale (1,239) (133) -               - -              - (1,372)
Transfer 4,094 - -               - -              (4,094) - 

0
At 31 March 2014 176,945 27,019 160,250 722 148 9,550 374,634

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

At 1 April 2013 7,182 12,597 54,208 431 12 - 74,430
Depreciation Charge 4,591 2,489 4,441 37 4 - 11,562

Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve (767) - -               - -              - (767)
Depreciation written out to the surplus /deficit on the 
provision of services (335) - -               - -              - (335)
Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve - - -               - -              - - 
Impairment - Donated Asset - -
Derecognition - disposals - (24) -             - -              - (24)
Derecognition - other (29) (1,354) (927) - - - (2,310)
Assets reclassified (to)/from held for sale (50) (133) -             - -              - (183)
Other movements in depreciation - - -             - -              - -               

At 31 March 2014 10,592 13,575 57,722 468 16 - 82,373

Net Book Value
Assets Owned 164,897 13,444 102,528 254 132 9,550 290,805
Assets Leased 1,456 1,456
At 31 March 2014 166,353 13,444 102,528 254 132 9,550 292,261

Assets Owned 161,250 14,405 102,359 285 136 7,663 286,098
Assets Leased 1,510 1,510
At 31 March 2013 162,760 14,405 102,359 285 136 7,663 287,608

Total PPE

Movements in 2013/14
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Other 
Land and 
Buildings

Vehicles, 
Plant & 

Equipment
Infra-

structure
Community 

Assets
Surplus 
Assets

Assets Under 
Construction

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2012 158,376 26,313 150,802 705 203 33,410 369,809
Additions 19,597 996 5,765 11               -              3,719 30,088

Donations 90             - - - -              - 90
Revaluation increases recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 620 - - - -              - 620
Revaluation (decreases) in the surplus/(deficit) 
on the provision of services) (14,659) - - - -              - (14,659)
Derecognition - disposals (40) (106) - - - - (146)
Derecognition - other (22,301) (12) - - -              - (22,313)
Assets reclassified (to)/from held for sale (1,137) (188) - - (125) - (1,450)
Transfer 29,396 - - - 70 (29,466) -                

0
At 31 March 2013 169,942 27,002 156,567 716 148 7,663 362,038

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

At 1 April 2012 18,822 10,332 49,966 395 29 - 79,544
Depreciation Charge 4,781 2,568 4,242 36 10 - 11,637
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation 
Reserve (1,167) - - - -              - (1,167)
Depreciation written out to the surplus /deficit on 
the provision of services (3,936) - - - -              - (3,936)
Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 11,068 3 - - -              - 11,071
Impairment - Donated Asset 90 90
Derecognition - disposals (18) (106) -              - -              - (124)

Derecognition - other (22,301) (12) - - - - (22,313)
Assets reclassified (to)/from held for sale (150) (188) -              - (34) - (372)
Other movements in depreciation (7) - -              - 7             - -              

At 31 March 2013 7,182 12,597 54,208 431 12 - 74,430

Net Book Value
Assets Owned 161,250 14,405 102,359 285 136 7,663 286,098
Assets Leased 1,510 1,510
At 31 March 2013 162,760 14,405 102,359 285 136 7,663 287,608

Assets Owned 139,554 15,981 100,836 310 174 33,410 290,265
At 31 March 2012 139,554 15,981 100,836 310 174 33,410 290,265

Comparative Movements in 2012/13

Total PPE
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Revaluations

Year 1  2010/11    16 Specialised and 27 non specialised properties in and around Stornoway 
Year 2  2011/12     21 Specialised and 37 non specialised properties on Lewis
Year 3  2012/13     21 Specialised and 36 non specialised properties on Lewis and Harris.
Year 4  2013/14     18 Specialised and 21 non specialised properties on Berneray, North Uist and Benbecula.

Year 5  2014/15     16 Specialised and 33 non specialised properties in South Uist, Eriskay and Barra.

Other Land & 
Buildings 

£'000
Vehicles & Plant 

£'000

Surplus 
Assets 

£'000

Community 
Assets 

£'000
Total 
£'000

 Valued at Historical Cost - 27,019 -             723 27,742

 Valued at Fair Value as at:
31 March 2014 14,569 - -             -             14,569
31 March 2013 50,778 - -             -             50,778
31 March 2012 31,252 - -             -             31,252
31 March 2011 47,156 - 31 -             47,187
31 March 2010 33,190 - 117 -             33,307

176,945 27,019 148 723 204,835

Capital Commitments

NOTE 10   HERITAGE ASSETS

Paintings Social History Archaeological Archives Regalia Total
Contemporary Artefacts

Artefacts
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost / valuation 
At 1 April 2013 196 1,010 165 365 35 1,771
Additions - - - -             -             -
Donations - 23 - 30 -             53              
Revaluation increases/(decreases) - - - -             -             -

At 31 March 2014 196 1,033 165 395 35 1,824

Paintings Social History Archaeological Archives Regalia Total
Contemporary Artefacts

Artefacts
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost / valuation 
At 1 April 2012 196 1,010 165 365 35 1,771
Additions - - - -             -             -
Donations - - - -             -             -
Revaluation increases/(decreases) - - - -             -             -

At 31 March 2013 196 1,010 165 365 35 1,771

 Not included are:
a) Lending library stock used for operational purposes;
b) Historic Buildings used to provide services to the Comhairle which are included in Property, Plant and Equipment.

The basis for valuation is set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies. The District Valuer has been appointed to carry out a valuation of assets
on an annual basis, from 2010/11. One fifth of the assets will be valued in each of the next five years as at 31 March, based on the following plan:

Museum Nan Eilean was established in 1983 to provide the first professional museum service for the Western Isles. This service was expanded in
1989 by the introduction of an exhibition area in Sgoil Lionacleit in Benbecula. The museum operates two stores, one at Marybank in Lewis and
another in Torlum in Uist. The Museum holds collections of artefacts, photographs, prints, paintings and archives including audio tracks illustrating
the archaeology, social, domestic and economic history of the Western Isles.

Collections were built up following the establishment of the Museum Service in 1983 with two exceptions, The Lewis Museum Trust established in
the 1950’s passed collected material to Museum Nan Eilean in 1983 and in 1999 the Calbost Collection was brought into the care and
management of Museum Nan Eilean

The collections are valued by a combination of fair values as determined by the Museum Conservation Officer, Insurance Values, and Market
Values as determined by an external valuer on 1 April 2012.

At 31 March 2014, the Comhairle had entered into a number of contracts for the construction or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment in
2013/14 and future years, at a cost of £15m. Similar commitments at 31 March 2013 were £23m. 
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NOTE 11  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows:

Fishing Software Total Fishing Software Total
Quota Licences 2012/13 Quota Licences 2013/14
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April
Gross carrying amounts 700 136 836 700 136 836
Accumulated amortisation (402) (81) (483) (403) (108) (511)
Net carrying amount at 31 March 298 55 353 297 28 325

Impairment losses recognised in the surplus/deficit on the 
provision of services (1) - (1) - - -
Revaluation increase recognised in the Revaluation Reserve - - - 2               - 2 
Amortisation for the year - (27) (27) - (28) (28)
Net carrying amount at 31 March 297 28 325 299 - 299

Comprising
Gross carrying amounts 700 136 836 700 136 836
Accumulated amortisation (403) (108) (512) (401) (136) (537)

297 28 324 299 - 299

NOTE 12  LONG TERM DEBTORS

Balance Advanced
Other 

Movement Repaid Balance 
31/03/13 in Year in Year in Year 31/03/14

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Car Loans 4 -          (1) (3) -           
House Loans 27 -          -            (6) 21
Business Loans 3 -          -            (1) 2
Harris Tweed Investment Fund 122 244 -            (246) 120
Community Support Loans 211 321 (34) (309) 189
Lochboisdale Development Ltd 174 -          -            (174) -           
Charging Orders on Properties 550 -          (171) -           379
Revolving Loans Pool 301 333 (4) (86) 544

1,392 898 (210) (825) 1,255        
Less:
Charging Orders on Properties Provision (350) -          274 -           (76)
Revolving Loans Pool Provision for Bad Debts (301) -          (242) -           (543)

741 898 (178) (825) 636

The intangible assets included on the Balance Sheet are in respect of Fishing Quota (quota) and a Software Licence. A quota is the right to fish
species over a defined period, usually one year. Quotas are held by government and distributed to fishermen through Producer Organisations.
Quotas for fish species most relevant to the Western Isles have, over a period of time, been purchased by external interests with the resulting
loss of control of fishing opportunities to local fishing communities. The purchase of quota by the Comhairle enables long term access to a
strategically important resource i.e. nephrops. The open market value of the quota held at 31 March 2014 was £299k. The quota is depreciated
over a 20 year period on a straight line basis.

The software licence is in respect of the IT system being used in the new community access point based in the town hall in Stornoway and is
depreciated over a five year period on a straight-line basis.

2012/13 2013/14
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NOTE 13   FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of Financial Instruments

Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:

31/03/13 31/03/14 31/03/13 31/03/14
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Investments
Loans and Receivables - Deposits - - 10,187 14,934
Loans to Other Entities and Individuals 1,069 949           160 194
Trade Receivables - - 1,743 1,182

1,069         949           12,090 16,310

Borrowings
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost - PWLB Borrowing 147,969 146,364 3,307 3,297
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost - Market Borrowing 1,013 1,060 1,010 5
Trade Payables - - 4,352 4,683

148,982 147,424   8,669 7,985

Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments

The definition of a financial instrument is: 'Any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity'.

The term 'financial instrument' covers both financial assets and financial liabilities. These range from straightforward trade
receivables and trade payables to more complex transactions such as financial guarantees, derivatives and embedded derivatives.
The Council's borrowing and investment transactions are also classified as financial instruments.

A Financial Asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Comhairle that is represented by cash or other instruments
or a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset.

The three classifications for financial assets under the Code of Practice are:
Loans and Receivables;
Available for Sale; and
Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The Comhairle's portfolio of investments consists of call/notice accounts. Call accounts are classed as 'Loans and Receivables'
and are measured at amortised cost. This form of measurement does not change the amount of cash received under the terms of
the investment. Trade Receivables (i.e. Trade Debtors) are classified as Loans and Receivables. These have been measured at
cost on the Balance Sheet.

The Comhairle does/does not have any investments required to be measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss.

A Financial Liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Comhairle and can be represented by a
contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial assets or an obligation to exchange financial assets and liabilities with another
entity that are potentially unfavourable to the Comhairle.

The Comhairle's loan portfolio at year end consisted of loans from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) and market debt. Under
the 2013/14 Code of Practice these forms of borrowing are measured at amortised cost. This form of measurement does not
change the amount of cash paid under the terms of the loan but can impact on the charge made to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Long Term Current

While the Comhairle has identified soft loans and loan guarantees, it is of the opinion that the effect of these on the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is not material, and therefore no adjustments have been made in respect of gains or losses. No
assets have been reclassified or derecognised and there has been no impairment or early redemption recognised.
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Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

- no early repayment or impairment is recognised
- where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months, carrying amount is assumed to approximate to fair value

The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

The fair values are calculated as follows:

Carrying 
Amount 

£'000
Fair Value 

£'000

Carrying 
Amount 

£'000
Fair Value 

£'000
Assets
Loans and receivables 10,179 10,179 14,934 14,934

Liabilities
Financial Liabilities (PWLB Loans) 149,573 236,306 149,661 219,764
Financial Liabilities (Market Loans) 2,014 2,309 1,065 1,196

Investments are stated at their carrying amount. All Comhairle investments are short-term on call, and repayment is due on 
demand, so there is no material difference between the carrying amount and the fair value.

The 2014 fair value of borrowing was calculated by reference to the premature repayment set of rates in force on 31 March 2014,
the 2013 figure by reference to the set of interest rates in force on 31 March 2013, as calculated by the PWLB. The fair value is
greater than the carrying amount because the Comhairle's borrowing figure includes a number of loans where the interest rate
payable is higher than the rates available for similar loans at the balance sheet date. This commitment to pay interest above
current market rates increases the amount that the Comhairle would have to pay if the lender requested or agreed to early
repayment of the loans.

Financial assets (represented by lending and receivables) and financial liabilities (represented by borrowings) are carried in the
balance sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that will take
place over the remaining term of the instrument, using the following assumptions:

31/03/13 31/03/14
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NOTE 14   DEBTORS

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

3,057 Central Government 2,927
723 Other Local Authorities 336
443 National Health Service 475

1,808 Public Corporations and Trade Funds 1,556
4,078 Other 3,780

10,108 9,074

NOTE 15  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

14 Cash held by the Comhairle 15
161 Bank Current Accounts 37

10,188 Short-term Deposits 14,897

10,363 14,949

NOTE 16  ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

850            Balance at 1 April 1,414

Assets newly classified as held for sale
1,078         Property, Plant and Equipment 1,189

75              Revaluation gains 28
(526) Impairment losses (289)
(63) Assets sold (293)

1,414         Balance outstanding at 31 March 2,050

NOTE 17  CREDITORS

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

1,948 Central Government 2,044
1,141 Other Local Authorities 1,083

191 National Health Service 547
4,443 Public Corporations and Trade Funds 4,683
4,997 Other 4,557

12,720 12,914
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NOTE 18  PROVISIONS

Balance Movement Balance
Bad Debt Provisions at 01/04/13 In Year at 31/03/14

£'000 £'000 £'000

Community Charge 59 (55) 4
Council Tax 1,526 (24) 1,502
Rents 5 - 5
Sundry Debtors 629 69 698
Fuel at Fishery Piers 11 - 11
Charges on Properties 280 87 367

2,510 77 2,587

Balance Movement Balance
Other Provisions at 01/04/13 In Year at 31/03/14

£'000 £'000 £'000

Current
Business Loans 3 (2) 1
Social Services Salaries 85 20 105
Loan Guarantees 48 (25) 23
Islenet 121 - 121
VAT Assessment - 38 38

257 31 288

Long Term
Restoration of Landfill Sites - 1,140 1,140

- 1,140 1,140

Business Loans This provision is in respect of non-payment of business development/support loans.

Social Services 
Salaries

Loan Guarantees

Islenet

VAT Assessment

Landfill Sites

NOTE 19  UNUSABLE RESERVES

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

8,360 Revaluation Reserve 8,456
116,098 Capital Adjustment Account 131,076

(2,335) Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (1,949)
(63,649) Pensions Reserve (83,647)
(1,256) Employee Statutory Adjustment Account (1,154)

57,218 Total Unusable Reserves 52,782

The Comhairle acts as guarantor for loans advanced under the Fisheries Assistance Scheme.  
This represents the "fair value" of the guarantees as required by the Code.

The Comhairle was the lead partner in Islenet, a network of European Island Authorities, which promoted sustainable
and efficient energy and environmental management. This provision was set up in March 2013 as it was is not clear if
the deficit on the project could be recovered from partner organisations and this is yet to be finalised.

This provision is in respect of an underpayment of enhanced hourly rates to a number of Adult Social Services staff 
and which is still to be settled.

This provision represents the present value of restoration works and aftercare required for landfill sites which are no
longer active at Rueval and Bennadrove.

A recent VAT inspection by HMRC identified a potential under recovery of VAT in respect of a specific service area.
Although this has now been resolved, there is a possibility that penalties may be levied and this represents the
estimated value of the penalty.

Note: The Debtors figure as shown in the balance sheet is net of these provisions.
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Revaluation Reserve

2012/13
£'000 £'000 £'000

10,480 Balance at 1 April 8,360

768 Upward revaluation of assets 491
(208) Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account (116)

560 375

(2,680) Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped (279)

8,360 Balance at 31 March 8,456

Financial Instruments Adjustments Account

2012/13
£'000 £'000 £'000

(2,726) Balance at 1 April (2,335)

-
Premiums incurred in the year and charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement      -

391
Proportion of premiums incurred in previous financial years to be charged
against the General Fund Balance in accordance with statutory requirements 386

391
Amount by which the finance costs charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement are different from finance costs chargeable in the year
in accordance with statutory requirements.

386

(2,335) Balance at 31 March (1,949)

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Comhairle arising from increases in the value of its Property, Plant and
Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are revalued downwards and the gains are lost or
disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since April 2007, the date that the Reserve was created. Gains prior to
this are consolidated in the Capital Adjustment Account.

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting
for income and expenses relating to certain financial instruments and for bearing losses or benefiting from gains per statutory
provisions. The Comhairle uses the Account to manage premiums paid on early redemption of loans. Premiums are debited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when they are incurred but reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the
Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Over time, the expense is posted back to the General Fund Balance in
accordance with statutory arrangements for spreading the burden on council tax. In the Comhairle's case this period is the
unexpired term that was outstanding on the loans when they were redeemed. As a result the balance on the Account at 31 March
2014 will be charged to the General Fund in future years.

2013/14

2013/14
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Capital Adjustments Account

2012/13
£'000 £'000 £'000

126,260 Balance at 1 April 116,098

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

(11,637) Depreciation and impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment (11,562)

(14) Amortisation of Investment (15)
(22,617) Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment (3,334)

(27) Amortisation of Intangible Assets (28)

(1,524) Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (2,734)

(85)
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of
gain/loss on disposal (630)

(35,905) (18,303)
2,680 Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 279

93,035 98,075

Capital financing applied in the year:

12,082
Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing 11,254

182 Application of grants from the Capital Grants Unapplied Account 103

-                        Application of grants from the Capital Receipts Unapplied Account 1,107
125 Application of grants from the Capital Fund 1,025

-                        Application of Revenue Balances 8,931
10,674 Statutory Provision for the financing of capital investment 10,581

33,001

116,098 Balance at 31 March 131,076

Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the year

2013/14

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for the
consumption of non current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory
provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and
amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation
Reserve to convert fair value figures to historic cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Comhairle as
finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement. 

The account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the
Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Note 5 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving the Revaluation Reserve.
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Pensions Reserve

2012/13
£'000 £'000 £'000

(64,000) Balance at 1 April (63,648)

5,776 Actuarial gains and losses on pension assets and liabilities (13,994)

(5,424)

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited
to the surplus or deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (6,005)

-                       
Employers pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners 
payable in the year -                         

(63,648) Balance at 31 March (83,647)

Employee Statutory Adjustment Account

2012/13
£'000 £'000 £'000

(1,260) Balance at 1 April (1,256)

1,260
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the
preceding year 1,256

(1,256) Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (1,154)

4

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals
basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in
accordance with statutory requirements

102

(1,256) Balance at 31 March (1,154)

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing difference arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post employment
benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Comhairle accounts for post employment benefits in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service,
updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to
meet costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Comhairle makes employer's
contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the
Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources
the Comhairle has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the
time the benefits come to be paid.

The Employee Statutory Adjustment Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance
from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, eg annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31
March.  Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

2013/14

2013/14
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NOTE 20  CASH FLOW STATEMENT - OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The cash flows for operating activities include the following amounts of interest.

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

191 Interest Received 99
(9,687) Interest Paid (9,561)

(9,496) (9,462)

NOTE 21  CASH FLOW STATEMENT - INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

(30,178) Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (18,360)
83 Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 251

(30,095) Net cash flows from investing activities (18,109)

NOTE 22  CASH FLOW STATEMENT - FINANCING ACTIVITIES

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

(1,615) Repayments of short-term and long-term borrowing (2,588)

(1,615) Net cash flows from financing activities (2,588)

NOTE 23  CASH FLOW STATEMENT - NON CASH MOVEMENTS

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Adjustment to net (surplus)/deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements:
11,678 Depreciation and Amortisation 11,605
22,617 Impairment and downward revaluations 2,954

2                     Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 379
2,753 Other Adjustments (1,767)

(84) Increase/(decrease) in Provisions 1,171
(2,900) Increase/(decrease) in Creditors 193

2,227 (Increase)/decrease in Debtors 1,139
53 (Increase)/decrease in Stock 106

2,661 IAS19 Pension Adjustment 6,005

39,007 Non Cash Movements 21,785
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NOTE 24  AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR RESOURCE ALLOCATION DECISIONS

Directorate Income and Expenditure

2013/14
Education Social and 

Community 
Services

Technical 
Services

Development Finance and 
Corporate 

Resources

Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Total Income (9,538) (7,705) (16,288) (6,522) (13,209) (53,262)

Employee Expenses 29,175 17,671 7,233 3,235 4,267 61,581
Premises Related Expenses 4,396 1,799 1,916 504 129 8,744
Transport Related Expenses 3,510 1,181 3,532 105 35 8,363
Supplies and Services 2,388 1,808 2,855 3,870 1,902 12,823
Third Party Payments 6,326 5,609 9,321 79 662 21,997
Transfer Payments - 105 - - 5,103 5,208
Support Services 6,335 2,822 2,764 1,607 3,121 16,649
Capital Charges 3,659 3,607 6,828 3,207 487 17,788
Total Expenditure 55,789 34,602 34,449 12,607 15,706 153,153

Net Expenditure 46,251 26,897 18,161 6,085 2,497 99,891

2012/13 Comparative Figures
Education Social and 

Community 
Services

Technical 
Services

Development Finance and 
Corporate 

Resources

Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Total Income (9,833) (7,910) (16,891) (5,367) (15,186) (55,187)

Employee Expenses 29,831 17,651 7,545 3,205 4,376 62,608
Premises Related Expenses 4,398 2,107 1,830 389 259 8,983
Transport Related Expenses 3,504 1,150 3,541 95 34 8,324
Supplies and Services 2,685 2,156 3,061 3,982 1,585 13,469
Third Party Payments 6,082 5,179 9,240 256 5,268 26,025
Transfer Payments 2,039 102 - - 6,516 8,657
Support Services 5,968 2,530 3,263 1,758 3,436 16,955
Capital Charges 22,259 2,028 6,886 2,356 2,400 35,929
Total Expenditure 76,766 32,903 35,366 12,041 23,874 180,950

Net Expenditure 66,933 24,993 18,475 6,674 8,688 125,763

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Net expenditure in departmental analysis 125,763 99,891

2,695 2,578

2,321 3,118

(1) (69)

Net Cost of services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 130,778 105,518

Amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement not reported to management in the 
analysis

Amounts included in the analysis not included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

The analysis of income and expenditure by service shown on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is that
specified by the Service Reporting Code of Practice. However, decisions about resource allocation are taken by the Comhairle on the basis
of budgets reports analysed across departments. These reports are prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in the
financial statements. In particular:

● the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer's contributions) rather than current service cost of benefits 
accrued in the year; and

● salary costs for the year are based on actual payments made rather than adjusting for unused leave entitlement.

Reconciliation of Departmental Income and Expenditure to Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive I&E Accounts

Net expenditure of services and support services not included in the analysis
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Reconciliation of Subjective Analysis

2013/14
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£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fees, Charges and Other Services Income (53,262) (2,523) - 17,243 (38,542) - (38,542)
Interest and Investment Income - - - - - (283) (283)
Income from Council Tax - - - - - (9,056) (9,056)
Government Grants and Contributions - - - - - (112,535) (112,535)
Total Income (53,262) (2,523) 0 17,243 (38,542) (121,874) (160,416)

Employee Expenses 61,581 2,402 3,118 (8,757) 58,344 - 58,344
Other Service Expenses 57,135 1,570 - (4,179) 54,526 - 54,526
Support Service Recharges 16,649 1,129 - (3,869) 13,909 - 13,909
Capital Charges 17,788 - - (507) 17,281 - 17,281
Interest Payments - - - - - 12,479 12,479
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Assets - - - - - 379 379
Total Expenditure 153,153 5,101 3,118 -17,312 144,060 12,858 156,918

Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services 99,891 2,578 3,118 (69) 105,518 (109,016) (3,498)

2012/13 Comparative Figures
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£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fees, Charges and Other Services Income (55,187) (2,496) - 17,568 (40,115) - (40,115)
Interest and Investment Income - - - - - (1,452) (1,452)
Income from Council Tax - - - - - (10,478) (10,478)
Government Grants and Contributions - - - - - (118,135) (118,135)
Total Income (55,187) (2,496) - 17,568 (40,115) (130,065) (170,180)

Employee Expenses 62,608 2,324 2,321 (8,748) 58,505 - 58,505
Other Service Expenses 65,458 1,701 - (4,021) 63,138 - 63,138
Support Service Recharges 16,955 1,166 - (4,325) 13,796 - 13,796
Capital Charges 35,929 - - (475) 35,454 - 35,454
Interest Payments - - - - - 12,751 12,751
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Assets - - - - - 2 2
Total Expenditure 180,950 5,191 2,321 (17,569) 170,893 12,753 183,646

Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services 125,763 2,695 2,321 (1) 130,778 (117,312) 13,466
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NOTE 25  TRADING OPERATIONS

2012/13 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14

Trading Operation
Deficit/ 

(Surplus) Expenditure Income
Deficit/ 

(Surplus)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Building Cleaning (11) 834 (834) - 
Schools Catering 3 1,731 (1,762) (31)
Other Catering 52 462 (406) 56
Refuse Collection (29) 1,951 (1,990) (39)
Street Cleansing (36) 410 (465) (55)
Grounds Maintenance (2) 164 (171) (7)
Fleet Management 25 1,290 (1,310) (20)
Property Maintenance Delivery (17) 896 (900) (4)
Highways (5) 360 (374) (14)
Street Lighting (2) 54 (54) - 
Ice Plants 10 19 (6) 13
Fuel at Fishery Piers (7) 1,262 (1,249) 13
Bus na Comhairle (63) 1,393 (1,381) 12

(82) 10,826 (10,902) (76)

NOTE 26  AGENCY SERVICES

2012/13 2013/14

£'000 £'000

Lews Castle College 4,234 4,291
Island Forum 21 10
Gaelic Resource Database - 3
Domestic Abuse Training Strategy 6 1
Hebridean Housing Partnership 1,363 1,372

5,624 5,677

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Lews Castle College 14 15
Hebridean Housing Partnership 75 - 
Scottish Water - Water Charges 82 81

171 96

NOTE 27   EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

2012/13 
£'000

2013/14 
£'000

Fee payable to Audit Scotland with regard to audit services carried out by the appointed auditor 213           211
Rebate in respect of previous year (12) - 

201           211             

The Comhairle operates a number of trading operations, none of which are classified as significant in terms of the Local Government
Scotland Act 2003.  The table below details the financial performance of each operation.

In 2013/14 £63k of trading operation deficits (net of interest charges and grant credits which are notional amounts for the calculation of 
financial performance and not reflected in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement) are included in Other Operating 
Expenditure and surpluses of £139k within specific service lines.

The Comhairle has entered into agreements to provide agency services to the undermentioned bodies for which costs incurred are fully
reimbursed by the body.  The amounts are not included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  Account.

The Comhairle collects and pays out monies on behalf of the following organisations. An administration fee is received for providing the
services.

The results of these trading operations are incorporated into the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Those that are
service specific, such as refuse collection, street cleansing and schools catering are included within the relevant service lines. Services that
can not be attributed to a specific service i.e. property maintenance, fleet management, grounds maintenance, other catering and building
cleaning are included in Other Operating Expenditure.
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NOTE 28   MEMBERS' SALARIES, ALLOWANCES AND EXPENSES 

Name
Salary 1 

£

Mileage 
Allowance 

£

Other Travel 
Expenses 

£

Subsistence 
Expenses 

£

Telephone & 
ICT 

Expenses 3 

£

Other 

Expenses 4 

£

2013/14 
Total 

£

2012/13 

Total 
£

Mr Donald Manford 16,396       1,388          891 1,412            733 -               20,821       26,285      

Mr David Blaney 16,396       1,821          815 3,433            548 -               23,014       23,985      

Mr Ronald Mackinnon 16,396       1,428          2,507             3,013            554 -               23,898       24,782      

Mr Donnie Steele 16,396       1,822          444 1,240            728 -               20,630       22,184      

Mr Archibald K Campbell 18,142       -              599 1,537            313 -               20,591       27,502      

Mr Uisdean Robertson 16,396       1,129          5,489             5,337            1,205            365              29,920       24,597      

Mr Neil Macdonald Beaton 16,396       1,740          2,119             2,253            495 -               23,003       23,102      

Mr Philip Mclean 16,396       829             - - 776 -               18,001       18,457      

Miss Catherine Macdonald 16,396       1,845          135 63 831 -               19,271       19,551      

Mr Donald John Macrae 16,396       2,708          69 138 798 -               20,109       16,598      

Mr Norman A Macdonald 20,497       6,912          11,057           2,370            779 937              42,553       40,031      

Mr Donald Macleod 16,396       958             135 75 301 -               17,864       17,217      

Mr Angus Morrison 16,396       1,097          - - 292 36 17,821       6,056        

Mr Norman M Macleod 2 16,396       246             1,049             180 517 -               18,387       16,778      

Mrs Angusina Stewart 16,396       -              135 - 263 -               16,794       15,081      

Mr Alasdair Macleod 16,713       -              2,746             923 263 -               20,645       16,309      

Mr Angus Campbell 27,329       377             9,963             3,450            857 559              42,535       44,040      

Mr Angus McCormack 18,447       -              360 145 486 545              19,983       19,697      

Mr Charles Nicolson 16,396       -              1,402             72 78 530              18,479       18,073      

Mr Rae Mackenzie 16,396       -              266 110 295 55 17,123       15,319      

Mr Roddie Mackay 18,447       -              879 241 78 -               19,645       18,753      

Mr Iain Mackenzie 16,396       -              - 100 423 -               16,919       16,733      

Mr Iain M Macaulay 16,396       -              - - 411 -               16,807       15,013      

Mr Gordon Murray 16,396       -              - - 568 168              17,132       15,697      

Mr John A Maciver 16,396       1,283          112 25 672 -               18,487       18,791      

Mrs Catriona Stewart 18,447       1,007          1,602             511 271 -               21,837       21,293      

Mr Donald F Crichton 16,396       -              114 76 305 35 16,926       15,158      

Mr John Mackay 2 18,447       1,264          2,899             79 714 -               23,402       20,515      

Mr Iain Morrison 16,396       -              - - 554 -               16,950       16,807      

Mr Kenneth Murray 18,447       1,306          2,165             439 388 -               22,745       25,133      

Mr Kenneth Macleod 16,396       1,034          384 104 894 -               18,812       15,896      

Amounts relating to individuals who are no longer serving Members of the Comhairle -            29,556      

Total 535,627 30,194 48,338 27,325 16,390 3,230 661,105 664,988

1 The salary figures exclude employer's National Insurance and Superannuation contributions
2 Allowance for Vice-convenor of Joint Valuation Board not included; figures published by Highland Council
3 The Telephone and ICT Expenses include telephone and computer hardware replacements as they require to be replaced, these totals also include the costs 
associated with an additional line where broadband is not available and is exclusive of personal call
4 The Other Allowances and Expenses are principally conference fees.
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NOTE 29  RELATED PARTIES

2013/14      
£'000        

Income

2013/14       
£'000   

Expenditure

2013/14       
£'000      

Debtors

2013/14       
£'000    

Creditors

Galson Stornoway Motor Service - 481 - - 
Mackinnons Plant Hire/Self Drive - 5 - - 
Bayhead Bridge Company (Trading) - 17 - - 
Angus Campbell Ltd - 143 - 10
Lochs Services Ltd - 102 - 8

- 748 - 18

NOTE 30  GRANT INCOME

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
General Revenue Grant 101,499 97,073
Scottish Government - Capital Grants 11,586 7,631
Other Capital Grants and Contributions 543 4,012
Non Domestic Rates 6,039 6,475

119,667 115,191

Credited to Services
DWP Grants 6,855 5,206
Specific Grants for Gaelic Education 1,005 996
Community Service Order Grant 315 331
European funding 2,021 1,401
Scottish Government - Other Revenue Grants 410 1,176

10,606 9,110
130,273 124,301

The following grants and contributions were credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during 2013/14:

The Comhairle is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals that have the potential to
control or influence the Comhairle or to be controlled or influenced by the Comhairle. Disclosure of these transactions allows
readers to assess the extent to which the Comhairle might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might
have secured the ability to limit another party's ability to bargain freely with the Comhairle.

Central and Scottish Government
Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the Comhairle, providing the statutory framework within
which the Comhairle operates as well as providing the majority of funding in the form of grants, as detailed in Note 30.

Companies and Joint Boards
The Comhairle is deemed to have a controlling interest in Sgoiltean Ura LLP (SULLP), the company that was set up to manage 
the design, construction and lifecycle maintenance of the schools being built as part of the Western Isles Schools Project. It also 
has an interest in Highlands and Islands Valuation Joint Board, further details of which can be found in the group accounts which 
are set out within these statements. Prior years figures include the Police and Fire Joint Boards but these services have now 
transferred to Police Scotland and the Scottish Fire and Rescue Service.

Members
Members of the Comhairle have direct control over the financial and operating policies of the Authority. The total of Members'
allowances paid in 2013/14 is as detailed in Note 28. The Comhairle holds a Register of Members' Interests which is available on
the Comhairle website. The Register details the bodies where members are represented or for which they have declared an
interest. During 2013/14, works and services to the value of £748k were commissioned from companies in which four Members
had a financial interest, as detailed in the table below. These companies had outstanding creditor balances of £18k at the year
end. Contracts were entered into in full compliance with the Comhairle's standing orders and transactions conducted at arms
length on the same terms and conditions as other transactions.

Officers
There were no material related parties declared by officers in the Register of Employee Interests.

Pension Fund
The Comhairle is a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by Highland Council and has made
payments as shown in Note 35.
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NOTE 31 LEASES

Operational Lease

Actual 
Expenditure 

2013/14

Committed 
Expenditure 

2014/15
Expiring
2014/15

Expiring 
2015/16 to 

2017/18
Expiring 2018/19 

and after
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Other Buildings 22 22 -                   22 -                        
Vehicles and Equipment 56 49 9 36 4

78 71 9 58 4

Finance Lease

Minimum Lease 
Payment at 

31/03/13

Minimum Lease 
Payment at 

31/03/14
£'000 £'000

1,510                  1,486
3,242                  2,967

4,752                  4,453

Minimum 
Lease 

Payment 
Finance Lease 

Liability Finance Cost
£'000 £'000 £'000

150 14 136
631 75 556

3,672 1,397 2,275

4,453 1,486 2,967

Asset: 
Stornoway Library

Within one year
Between 2 and 5 years
Greater than 5 years

The Comhairle acquired a finance lease for the Stornoway Library in 2012/13. The Library was valued at £1.510m in 2012/13 by
the District Valuer and is carried as Property, Plant and Equipment in the Balance Sheet. The Comhairle is committed to making
minimum payment under this lease comprising settlement of the long term liability for the interest of the property, and finance costs
that will be payable by the Comhairle in future years while the liability remains outstanding.

The minimum lease payments are made up of the following amounts:

The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods:

The committed operating lease expenditure in financial year 2013/14 analysed by the year that the lease expires is as follows:

Asset: 
Stornoway Library

Minimum Lease Payment

Finance Lease Liability
Finance Costs
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2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 156,901 167,023
Capital Investment

Property, Plant and Equipment 30,088 19,353
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 1,524 2,734
Other 6 129

31,618 22,216

Sources of Finance
Capital Income

Government Grants and Other Capital Contributions (10,640) (10,253)
Prior Year Government Grants (182) (1,210)
Capital Fund - (1,025)

Sums Set Aside from Revenue
Loans Fund Principal (10,674) (10,581)
Capital Financed From Current Revenue (8,931)

(21,496) (32,000)

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 167,023 157,239

Movement in Year - represented by a decrease in underlying need to borrow (10,122) 9,784

NOTE 33  IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

NOTE 34  TERMINATION BENEFITS

NOTE 35  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES

Participation in Pension Schemes

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits
The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported Cost of Services when they are earned by the Comhairle's employees, rather
than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge that is statutorily required to be made against the Council Tax
is based upon the pension contributions payable by the Comhairle in the year, and an adjustment is made in the Movement in Reserves
Statement to achieve this.

NOTE 32  CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING

During 2013/14 the Comhairle recognised £3.334m of impairment losses. This related to the reduction in value of property and landfill sites.
In 2012/13 £23m of impairment was recognised of which £11m related to the demolition of school buildings as part of the Western Isles
Schools Project and £12m related to the reduction of non current assets. All impairment losses are included in the cost of provision of
services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

During 2013/14 the Comhairle granted early retirement or redundancy to 17 teachers and 13 other members of staff (3 teachers and 20 other
staff in 2012/13), incurring liabilities of £1,001k (£392k, 2012/13). Of this total, £872k (£85k, 2012/13) is payable to teachers in the form of
compensation for loss of office and enhanced pension benefits. The total cost incurred in respect of the 13 staff members was £129k
(£307k, 2012/13).

The post-employment scheme for employees other than teachers is the Local Government Pension Scheme and is administered by Highland
Council. The Local Government Pension Scheme is a multi-employer, defined benefit scheme in which it is possible for an employer to
identify its share of the assets and liabilities on a consistent and reasonable basis. This is a "funded" defined benefit final salary scheme,
meaning that Comhairle nan Eilean Siar and its employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the
pensions liability with investment assets.

The principal risks to the authority of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the scheme, changes to inflation, bond
yields and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory
requirements to charge to the General Fund the amounts due by statute as described in the accounting policies note.

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together with the resources that have been used to
finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years, by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Comhairle, the
expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). This is a measure of the capital expenditure incurred
historically by the Comhairle that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed below.
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Post-Employment Benefits

Cost of Services
Current Service Cost
Past Service Costs
Curtailments and Settlements

Financing and Investment
Net Interest Expense
Net Charge to the Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services

Other Costs to CIE

Expected return on assets in the scheme

Actuarial (gains) or losses arising on changes in demographic assumptions

Actuarial (gains) or losses arising on changes of financial assumptions

Other Experience

Total Charges to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Movement in Reserves Statement

Amount Charged to General Fund: Employers' Contributions 

Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-employment Benefits

Present value of the defined benefit obligation*
Fair value of pension fund assets
Net Liability arising from Defined Benefit Obligation
*Unfunded liabilities included in the figure for present value of liabilities
Unfunded liabilities for Pension Fund

1 April
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Contributions by Pension Fund participants
Re-measurement gains and (losses)
   actuarial gains/(losses) from changes in demographic assumptions
   actuarial gains/(losses) arising from changes in financial assumptions
   other experience 142
Benefits paid
Past Service Costs
Curtailments and Settlements
Closing Value at 31 March

Reversal of net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with IAS19

17,891

7,53817,891
645

(3,572)

(60,526)

236,381

(4,061)

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the local authority's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as 
follows:

Pensions Assets & Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet
£'000

(271,099)

645 142

25,544 5,903

7,539

89 34

2013/14 2012/13
£'000 £'000

-                         -                         

2,784 3,099
11,550 11,679

(4,542) (13,457)

8,677 8,546

(19,488) 179

6,056

10,762

6,082

Reconciliation of Present Value of Scheme Liabilities:
Funded Liabilities: Local Government 

Pension Scheme    £000s
2013/14 2012/13

£'000

8,677

89 34

31/03/2014 31/03/2013

1,843 1,888

191,085
(80,014)

(236,381)
175,855

271,099 236,381

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

9,774

(5,189) (6,022)

214,481
8,546
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1 April
Interest income
Re-measurement gains and (losses)
   Expected rate of return on pension fund assets
The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates
Contributions from employers
Contributions from employees into the scheme
Benefits paid
Closing Value at 31 March

£'000 % £'000 %

Cash and cash equivalents 2,924 2% 2,723 2%

Equity instruments [by industry type]
   Consumer 21,635 11% 20,380 12%
   Manufacturing 16,045 8% 13,893 8%
   Energy & utilities 10,661 6% 9,677 6%
   Financial institutions 18,587 10% 15,056 9%
   Health & care 4,924 3% 5,270 3%
   Information Technology 14,040 7% 12,366 7%
   Other 3,935 2% 4,311 2%
Sub-total equity 89,827 47% 80,953 47%

Bonds [by sector]
   Corporate 23,525 12% 23,782 13%
   Government 12,587 7% 12,451 7%
Sub-total bonds 36,112 19% 36,233 20%

Property [by type]
   UK Property 14,097 7% 12,112 7%
   Overseas Property 1,336 1% 1,427 1%
Sub-total property 15,433 8% 13,539 8%

Private equity 2,907 2% 1,947 1%

Other investment funds - Equities 43,813 22% 40,476 22%

Derivatives
   Forward foreign exchange contracts 185 0% 69 0%

Total assets 191,201 100% 175,940 100%

6,6757,978

Analysis of Pension Fund's Assets
31/03/2014 31/03/2013

(6,022)

2013/14 2012/13

175,855 153,775

4,542
-                         -                         

191,085 175,855

Local Government Pension Scheme   
£000s

13,457

1,843 1,888
(5,189)

Reconciliation of Fair Value of Scheme Assets:

6,056 6,082
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Basis for Estimating Pension Fund Assets and Liabilities

The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:

Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme:
Equity investments
Bonds
Property
Cash 3.7%

Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
                                               Men
                                               Women
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
                                               Men
                                               Women
Rate of inflations:
Rate of increase in prices
Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase in pensions
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities
Take-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Fund

1 year increase in member life expectancy 3% 8,136
0.5%  increase in Salary Increase Rate 4% 9,521
0.5% increase in Pension Increase Rate 7% 18,699
0.5% increase in Real Discount Rates 11% 28,731

Assumption Amount
% £'000

The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table above. The sensitivity
analyses below have been determined based in reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The
methods and types of assumption used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the previous
period.

Monetary  % Increase in

4.3% 4.5%
50% 50%

21.3

22.6 22.6

2.8% 2.6%
5.1% 4.8%
2.5% 3.4%

25.1

23.6

25.1

21.3
23.6

4.8% 4.4%
3.6%

Local Government Pension 
Scheme          

2013/14 2012/13

6.7% 6.4%

0.5%

The total contributions expected to be made by the Comhairle to the Local Government Pension Fund in the year to 31 March 2015 is
£5.452million.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for Fund members is 17.7 years.

The Comhairle's share of the liabilities of the Local Government Pension Scheme has been assessed on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit method, that estimates then pension that will be payable in future years dependent upon assumptions about mortality
rates, salary levels and so on. The Funds liabilities have been assessed by Barnett Waddingham, an independent firm of actuaries, and
the estimates are based on the latest full valuation of the fund at 31 March 2011.  

The Local Government Pension Fund has an asset and liability matching strategy (ALM) that matches, to the extent possible, the types
of assets invested to the liabilities in the defined benefit obligation. The Fund has matched assets to the pensions' obligations by
investing in long-term fixed interest securities and index linked gilt edged investments with maturities that match the benefits payments
as they fall due. A large proportion of the assets relate to equities (71%) and bonds (19%). The comparative year's figures are 70% and
20%. The scheme also invests in properties (8%) and in cash (2%). The ALM strategy is monitored annually or more frequently if
necessary.

The objectives of the Fund are to keep employers' contributions at as constant a rate as possible. The Fund has agreed a strategy with
the scheme's actuary to achieve a funding rate of 100%. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis. The next triennial valuation
is due to be completed on 31 March 2014.

The Fund will need to take account of impending national changes to the Local Government Pension Scheme in Scotland such as the
move to a new career average revalued earnings (CARE) scheme.

4.0%
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NOTE 36 INTEREST IN COMPANIES

NOTE 37 SIGNING OF ACCOUNTS

The Scheme is technically a defined benefit scheme. However, the Scheme is unfunded and the SPPA uses a notional fund as the 
basis for calculating the employers' contribution rate paid by local authorities. The Comhairle is not able to identify its share of the 
underlying financial position and performance of the Scheme with sufficient reliability for accounting purposes. For the purposes of 
this Statement of Accounts, it is therefore accounted for on the same basis as a defined contribution scheme.

Copies of the accounts are available from the Director of Finance, Highland Council, Glenurquhart Road, Inverness, IV3 5NX.

Copies of the accounts are available from Sgoiltean Ura LLP, Council Offices, Sandwick Road, Stornoway, Isle of Lewis, HS1 2BW.

The Comhairle also holds 20% voting rights on the Highland and Western Isles Joint Valuation Board, which is included in the group
accounts as an associate.

There have been no material events since the date of the Balance Sheet which necessitate revision to the figures in the financial
statements or notes, including contingent assets or liabilities.

The Director of Finance and Corporate Resources, being the officer responsible for the Comhairle's financial affairs, signed the
Statement of Accounts on 26 September 2014. Events after the date of the Balance Sheet (31 March 2014), up to the date of
signing, have been considered in the preparation of the 2013/14 Statement of Accounts.

The Comhairle is responsible for the costs of any additional benefits awarded upon early retirement outside the terms of the 
teachers' scheme. These costs are accounted for on a defined benefit basis. An estimate of £3.6m in respect of discretionary 
unfunded pension awards has been included in the net pension liability in the balance sheet.

The Comhairle wholly owns Sgoiltean Ura LLP, an arms length limited liability partnership responsible for the management of the
design, construction, facilities management and lifecycle maintenance of the schools to be built as part of the Western Isles Schools
Project. The LLP is a partnership between the Comhairle (99.99%) and Sgoiltean Ura Investments Ltd (0.01%), with the latter being
a company limited by shares having the Comhairle as sole share holder.

Teachers' Pension Scheme
Teachers employed by the authority are members of the Teachers' Pension Scheme, administered by The Scottish Public Pensions 
Agency (SPPA), an Executive Agency of the Scottish Government. It provides teachers with defined benefits upon their retirement, 
and the Comhairle contributes towards the costs by making contributions based on a percentage of members' pensionable salaries. 
The last actuarial valuation was undertaken at 31 March 2005.

In 2013/14, the Comhairle paid £2.124m (£2.192m in 2012/13) to the Scottish Government in respect of teachers' retirement 
benefits, representing 14.9% of pensionable pay (2012/13, 14.9%). From 1 April 2012 the government introduced a tiered system of 
member contribution rates, based on an employees full time equivalent pensionable pay. These rates range from 6.4% for those on
£15,000 or less to 11.2% for those on £100,000 and above (2012/13, standard rate of 6.4%). There were no contributions remaining 
payable at the year-end. In addition, the Comhairle is responsible for all pension payments arising from added years awards to staff 
taking early retirement. In 2013/14 these amounted to £423,174 (£298,374 2012/13). Included in this figure were lump sum 
payments of £106,385 (£12,289 2012/13).
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NOTE 38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

NOTE 39 TRUST FUNDS

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

116 Opening Balance 1 April 112
3 Income 2

(7) Expenditure (2)

112 Closing Balance 31 March 112

Balance Sheet 

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Tangible Fixed Assets
20 Investments 19

Current Assets
14 Short Term Deposits 60
78 Bank Deposits 33

112 Total Assets 112

Represented by :
112 Capital & Revenue Reserves 112

112 Net Worth 112

Only the undernoted trusts have closing values in excess of £10,000.

Value at 
31/03/2013 

£'000

Value at 
31/03/2014 

£'000

47 Donald A Ferguson Bequest (Social Work - Ardseileach Residents) 47
27 W C Mackenzie Trust (for non-council projects in Stornoway) 27
26 Dr J L Robertson Bequest (for residents hardship) 25

100 99

The Comhairle acts as sole trustee for twelve educational, social welfare and miscellaneous trusts. They relate principally to
legacies left by individuals with Western Isles connections over a period of years. The balance held at 31 March 2014 was £112k
(2012/13 £112k). The income from the trusts is used to provide educational grants and prizes, comforts for the elderly,
handicapped and various community facilities. The funds do not represent assets of the Comhairle and are not included in the
Balance Sheet. 

Summary Income and Expenditure Account

The Comhairle acts as guarantor for up to £361k of loans advanced under the Fisheries Assistance and Business Loans Schemes.
Provision has been made in the event of non-payment of a portion of the loans issued prior to 31 March 2006. Guarantees issued
after this date have been recognised on the balance sheet.

Although the majority of Equal Pay claims were settled during 2006/07, a small number of new claims have been lodged following
the implementation of the Single Status agreement. The value of the claims is not quantifiable at this stage.

The Comhairle is involved in litigation with a contractor, where a final payment of approximately £500k has been withheld, due to a 
dispute over performance. Whilst the Comhairle expects to succeed with its case, the outcome is unlikely to be known before the 
latter part of 2014.
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NOTE 40   NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Credit Risk

The assessment criteria in respect of financial assets held by the Comhairle are as detailed below:

Deposits Published credit ratings RBS-CnES Banker -
Credit default SWAPS £5m
Economic fundamentals £100m
Sovereign support mechanisms
Share Prices

market sentiment and momentum.

Subjective Overlay

Amount at
31/03/2014

£'000 £'000

Deposits with banks, building societies and local authorities 14,934 -
Customers (council tax, non-domestic rates and other income) 7,422 3,202

31/03/13 31/03/14
£'000 £'000

Less than three months 389 638
Three to six months 301 549
Six months to one year 914 1,192
More than one year 3,848 3,838

5,452 6,217

The Comhairle does not generally allow credit for customers, such that £6.2m of the £7.4m balance is past its due date for payment. The
past due amount can be analysed by age as follows:

Credit risk arises from the short-term lending of surplus funds to banks, building societies and other local authorities as well as credit
exposures to the Comhairle's customers. In accordance with Investment Regulations issued by the Scottish Government and best practice,
the Comhairle's primary objective in relation to the investment of public funds remains the security of capital. The liquidity or accessibility of
the Comhairle's investments followed by the yields earned on the investments are important but are secondary considerations. Institutions
are independently assessed as sufficiently secure by the Comhairle's treasury advisors and deposits are restricted to a prudent maximum
amount for each institution.

The following analysis summarises the Comhairle's potential maximum exposure to credit risk, based on past experience and current market
conditions. No credit limits were exceeded during the financial year and the Comhairle expects full repayment on the due date of deposits
placed with its counterparties.

Estimated maximum
exposure to default and

Corporate developments, news articles,

uncollectibility

The Comhairle's management of treasury risks actively works to minimise the Comhairle's exposure to the unpredictability of financial
markets and to protect the financial resources available to fund services. The Comhairle has fully adopted CIPFA's Code of Treasury
Management Practices and has written principles for overall risk management as well as written policies and procedures covering specific
areas such as credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Relevant factors used in analysis Maximum Investment

Other banks and building societies
Debt Management Account Deposit 
Facility (DMADF)
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Liquidity Risk

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows:

£'000

Less than one year 1,605
Between one and two years 2,605
Between two and five years 5,837
More than five years 138,982

149,029

Market Risk

Foreign Exchange Risk

£'000
Impact on tax-payer & rent-payers
Increase on interest payable on variable rate borrowings -                       
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate lending (163)
Increase in government grant receivable for "loan charges" 163
Net effect on Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account -                       

Other accounting presentational changes
A decrease in the "fair value" of fixed rate lending -

30,568

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the changes being reversed.

The Comhairle's main source of borrowing is the Treasury's Public Works Loans Board. There is no significant risk that the Comhairle
will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments. The Comhairle endeavours to ensure that a
significant proportion of its borrowing does not mature for repayment at any one time in the future, to reduce the financial impact or of
re-borrowing at a time of unfavourable interest rates. This is achieved through a combination of prudent planning of new loans taken
out and, where it is economic to do so, making early repayments.

All trades and other payables are due to be paid within one year.

Changes in market interest rates influence the interest payable on borrowings and on interest receivable on surplus funds invested.
For example, a rise in interest rates would mean an increase in the interest charged on borrowing at variable rates and an increased
cost to the taxpayer. An increase in interest rates would also mean an increase in the income received on lending at variable rates and
a reduction in the cost for the taxpayer.

Changes in market rates also affect the notional "fair value" of lending and borrowing. For example, a rise in interest rates would
reduce the fair value of both lending and borrowing at fixed rates. Changes in the fair value of lending and borrowing do not impact
upon the taxpayer and are confined to prescribed presentational aspects in the accounts.

A decrease in the "fair value" of fixed rate borrowing

The Comhairle has a variety of strategies for managing the uncertainty of future interest rates and the financial impact on the
Comhairle.

It is the policy of the Comhairle to limit its exposure to variable rate borrowing to a maximum of 40% of what it borrows.

Where it is economically advantageous to do so, the Comhairle will consider the repayment and restructuring of fixed interest rate debt.

The Comhairle takes regular advice from its specialist treasury advisers and actively monitors changes in interest rates to inform
decisions on the lending of surplus funds, new borrowings and restructurings of existing borrowings.

Any potential for a financial impact on the Comhairle is also significantly limited by the Scottish Government's grant distribution
mechanism that automatically adjusts for changes in interest rates in the government grant support the Comhairle receives for "loan
charges".

To illustrate the impact of changes in interest rates upon the Comhairle, the following table shows the financial effect if rates had been
1% higher at 31 March 2014, with all other variables held constant.

The Comhairle has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no exposure to loss arising from 
movements in exchange rates.
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NOTE 41  PENSION DISLOSURES: CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY REQUIRED BY THE CODE

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

2012/13 
Statements 

£'000
Adjustments 

Made       £'000

8,916 2,763
(3,013) (2,763)

Movement in Reserves Statement

2012/13 
Statements 

£'000
Adjustments 

Made       £'000

10,703 2,763
(15,292) (2,763)

There has been no change to the Pension Liability or the Pension Reserve in the Balance Sheet.

NOTE 42  EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/14 introduced a change in the treatment and
presentation of some of the costs associated with Pensions. Whilst the overall impact of this change is neutral, there has been a
redistribution of costs within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The 2012/13 comparative figures on both statements have been adjusted as shown on pages 29 and 30. The adjustments that
have been made are as follows:

Pension Charges included in (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Pension Fund Assets and Liabilities

(Surplus)/Deficit on the Provision of Services (Accounting Basis)
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulation

The Comhairle, at its meeting on 12 September 2013 authorised the Director of Education and Children's Services to proceed to
undertake the necessary statutory consultation with parents, staff, pupils and other interested parties affected by the proposal
regarding the closure of Carinish, Lochmaddy and Paible Schools. Should this proposal be agreed, a new primary school,
including provision for statutory pre-school education will be constructed in Paible, North Uist. The impact on the valuation of the
three schools as a consequence of valuing them on a market value basis instead of a depreciated replacement cost basis will
result in an impairment of £2m at 2014 prices. The effect of this is likely to be included in the 2015/16 Annual Accounts.
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INCOME ACCOUNTS

COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNT

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000 

(12,391) Council Tax Levy and Contributions in lieu (12,441)

Less:
(18) Council Tax Benefit (net of Government Grant)

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 1,595
1,825 Other Discounts and Reductions 1,742

106 Write off of Uncollectable Debts and allowance for impairment 48

Add:
- Adjustments to Previous Years' Community Charge and Council Tax -

(10,478) Council Tax Income per the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (9,056)

NON DOMESTIC RATE INCOME ACCOUNT

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000 

(9,805) Gross Rates Levied and Contributions in Lieu (10,082)

Less:
3,023 Reliefs and Other Deductions 3,290

32 Write-off of Uncollectable Debts and allowance for impairment (45)
- Payment of Interest -

(6,750) Net Non-Domestic Rate Income (6,837)

(21) Adjustment to Previous Years' National Non-Domestic Rates 203

(6,771) Contribution to Non-Domestic Rate Pool (6,634)

(6,039) Distribution from Non-Domestic Rate Pool (6,475)

(6,039) Income credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (6,475)

The Council Tax Income Account shows the gross income raised from council taxes levied and deductions made under
statute. The resultant net income is transferred to the Comhairle's Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Non-Domestic Rate Account is an agent's statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities to maintain
a separate Non-Domestic Rate Account. The statement shows the gross income from the rates and deductions made under
statute. The net income is paid to the Scottish Government as a contribution to the  national non-domestic rate pool.
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NATURE OF THE COUNCIL TAX CHARGE

Calculation of the Council Tax Base

DISABLED
2012/13 A A B C D E F G H 2013/14

14,458 Properties 4788 3813 2811 1716 1185 169 33 4 14,519
667 Exemptions 345 182 95 30 35 1 1 1 690
99 Disabled Relief 16 18 27 18 20 1 1 101
99 Effective Disabled 16 18 27 18 20 1 1 101

4,819 Discounts (25%) 7 2103 1367 822 373 208 20 4 4,904
1,150 Discounts (50%) 391 343 162 72 37 2 2 1 1,010
- Council Tax Reduction 2 678 476 287 79 44 3 1 1,570

12,011 Total equivalent 12 3046 2651 2134 1480 1017 159 28 3 10,530

Ratio 5/9 6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9

10,122 Band D equivalents 7 2031 2062 1897 1480 1243 230 47 6 9,003
9 Contributions in lieu 9

10,131 9,012

(151) Bad Debt Provision (167)

9,980 Council Tax Base 8,845

Number of Effective Properties per Band and Council Tax Levels 2013/14

Band

A (Disabled) 12
A 3,046
B 2,651
C 2,134
D 1,480
E 1,017
F 159
G 28
H 3

10,530

568.89
682.67
796.44
910.22

2,048.00

1,479.11
1,251.66

1,706.67

£Properties

Properties which fulfil certain criteria are exempt from Council Tax and no payments are due. Second homes and long-term empty
properties are charged 90% (40% being paid over to Registered Social Landlords for investment in housing related projects). The
Council Tax is reduced by 25% where a dwelling has only one occupant and by 50% if the property is empty. If a property has
features which meet the needs of a disabled occupant then relief is given by a reduction of one band.

1,024.00

In 2013/14 Council Tax Benefit was replaced with the Council Tax Reduction Scheme, which is funded by the Scottish Government
and treated as a reduction in aggregate Council Tax Income. There is a corresponding increase in the income included in Taxation
and Non-Specific Grant Income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
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NATURE AND AMOUNT OF NON DOMESTIC RATE CHARGES

Relief available
2013/14

Combined rateable value of all business properties in Scotland:
Up to £10,000 100%
£10,001 - £12,000 50%
£12,001 - £18,000 25%
Upper limit for cumulative RV £25,000 * 25%

Analysis of Rateable Values 1 April 2013

Number Rateable
of Properties Value

£'000

Care Facilities 29 727
Cultural 20 289
Education and Training 114 3,990
Garage and Petrol Stations 98 528
Heath Medical 32 1,373
Hotels, boarding Houses etc 464 1,571
Industrial including Factories and Warehouses 330 2,983
Leisure, Entertainment Caravans and Holiday Sites 67 207
Offices including Banks 200 2,843
Other 5 30
Petrochemical 1 16
Public Houses 10 211
Public Service Subjects 219 2,749
Quarries, Mines etc 12 114
Religious 150 593
Shops 313 1,894
Sporting Subjects 37 523
Undertaking 84 1,111

2,185 21,752

Rates collected by the Comhairle are paid into the National Non-Domestic Rates Pool and the money is redistributed by the
Scottish Government according to need.

Non-Domestic Rates are a tax levied by local authorities on the occupiers of commercial property. The amount paid is determined
by the rateable value placed on the property by the Assessor, multiplied by the rate per pound (the "rate poundage"). The rate
poundage is set each year by the First Minister for Scotland. For 2013/14 the charge was 46.2 pence in the pound (45p in
2012/13). For properties with a rateable value of over £35,000 a supplement of 0.9 pence (0.8 pence in 2012/13) in the pound was
added as per the Non-Domestic Rates (Levying) (Scotland) Regulations 2004 as amended, and this contributes towards the cost of
the Small Business Bonus Scheme.

The Small Business Bonus Scheme introduced on 1 April 2008 progressively reduces the rates burden for businesses with
properties of which the combined rateable value is £18,000 or less.  The relief rates for 2013/14 are detailed below:

* This will allow a business with 2 or more properties with a cumulative rateable value under £25,000 to qualify for relief at 25% on individual
properties with a rateable value less than £18,000.
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GROUP MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

2013/14
General 

Fund
Capital 

Fund

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve

Total 
Usable 

Reserves
Unusable 
Reserves

Total 
Comhairle 
Reserves

Share of 
Reserves of 

Associates & 
Subsidiaries

Total 
Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2013 22,764 1,181 124 900 24,969 57,219 82,188 (74,986) 7,202
Transfer of Police and Fire to 
Central Government 74,132 74,132
Revised Balance as at 1 April 2013 22,764 1,181 124 900 24,969 57,219 82,188 (854) 81,334

Surplus/(deficit) on provision of 
services (accounting basis) 3,498 -                - -                3,498 -                3,498 (103) 3,395
Other Comprehensive I & E Items -              -                -               -              -              (13,619) (13,619) (46) (13,665)

Total Comprehensive I & E 3,498 -                -               -              3,498 (13,619) (10,121) (149) (10,270)

Adjustments between accounting 
basis and funding basis under 
regulation (7,462) (1,025) 161 (856) (9,182) 9,182 - - -

Net Increase/Decrease before 
transfers to other Statutory 
Reserves (3,964) (1,025) 161 (856) (5,684) (4,437) (10,121) (149) (10,270)

Increase/Decrease in Year (3,964) (1,025) 161 (856) (5,684) (4,437) (10,121) (149) (10,270)

Balance at 31 March 2014 18,800 156 285 44 19,285 52,782 72,067 (1,003) 71,064

2012/13 Comparative Figures 
(Restated) General 

Fund
Capital 

Fund

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve

Total 
Usable 

Reserves
Unusable 
Reserves

Total 
Comhairle 
Reserves

Share of 
Reserves of 

Associates & 
Subsidiaries

Total 
Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2012 18,175 1,306 266 817 20,564 68,754 89,318 (70,815) 18,503

Surplus/(deficit) on provision of 
services (accounting basis) (13,466) -                - -                (13,466) -                (13,466) (1,787) (15,253)
Other Comprehensive I & E Items -              -                -               -              -              6,336 6,336 (2,384) 3,952

Total Comprehensive I & E (13,466) -                -               -              (13,466) 6,336 (7,130) (4,171) (11,301)

Adjustments between accounting 
basis and funding basis under 
regulation 18,055 (125) (142) 83 17,871 (17,871) -                - -                

Net Increase/Decrease before 
transfers to other Statutory 
Reserves 4,589 (125) (142) 83 4,405 (11,535) (7,130) (4,171) (11,301)

Increase/Decrease in Year 4,589 (125) (142) 83 4,405 (11,535) (7,130) (4,171) (11,301)

Balance at 31 March 2013 22,764 1,181 124 900 24,969 57,219 82,188 (74,986) 7,202

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Comhairle and its share of the reserves of associates and
subsidiaries, analysed into "usable reserves" (those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or
(Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund for council tax setting
purposes. The net increase/decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary
transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Comhairle.
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GROUP COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

Gross 
Expend

Gross 
Income

Net 
Expend

Gross 
Expend

Gross 
Income

Net 
Expend

£'000 £'000 £'000 Service £'000 £'000 £'000

65,976 (3,143) 62,833 Education Services 46,889 (3,113) 43,776

8,520 (6,716) 1,804 General Fund Housing 8,577 (7,022) 1,555

8,756 (1,819) 6,937 Cultural & Related Services 5,765 (1,502) 4,263

10,484 (2,100) 8,384 Environmental Services 10,110 (1,959) 8,151

12,028 (789) 11,239 Roads & Transport Services 11,681 (585) 11,096

7,632 (3,285) 4,347 Planning & Development Services 8,113 (4,174) 3,939

28,752 (4,694) 24,058 Social Work 32,049 (4,816) 27,233

2,836 (64) 2,772 Corporate & Democratic Core 2,803 (18) 2,785

433         - 433 Non Distributed Costs 957 - 957

1,433 (250) 1,183 Central Services to the Public 1,267 (242) 1,025

2,518 (2,222) 296 Trading Services 2,596 (2,185) 411

Joint Board Requisitions 41 - 41

149,368 (25,082) 124,286 Cost of Services 130,846 (25,616) 105,230

987 (965) 22 Other Operating Expenditure (Note 7) 1,433 (985) 448

12,731 (1,452) 11,279 Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure (Note 8) 12,410 (283) 12,127

(128,613) (128,613) Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income (Note 9) (121,591) (121,591)

163,086 (156,112) 6,974 Surplus on Provision of Services 144,689 (148,475) (3,786)

8,279 Share of Operating Results of Associates 391

15,253 Group (Surplus)/Deficit (3,395)

(560) Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets (375)

(5,776)
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on Pension Fund Assets and 
Liabilities 13,994

2,384
Share of Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure of 
Associates (Note G3) 46

(3,952) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 13,665

11,301 Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 10,270

2012/13 (Restated) 2013/14

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices,
rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. It also shows the Comhairle's share of the operating results of associates and
subsidiaries. The Comhairle raises taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting
cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
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GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000 

(9,727) Net surplus or( deficit) on the provision of services 3,395

35,268 Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements 21,888

25,541 Net cash flows from Operating Activities 25,283

(30,095) Investing Activities (18,109)

(1,615) Financing Activities (2,588)

(6,169) Net (increase)/decrease in cash and cash equivalents 4,586

16,532 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 10,363

10,363 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 14,949

(6,169) 4,586

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

(10,703) Surplus/(Deficit) on Single Entity I & E Account for Year 3,498

4,666  Less:   Adjustment for transactions with other Group entities 288

(6,037) (Surplus)/Deficit in Group CI & E  Attributable to Comhairle 3,786

(8,279) Add:  Deficit in Group I & E Account attributable to Associates (391)
1,826 Add: Surplus/( Deficit) in Group I & E Account attributable to Subsidiaries -

(12,490) Deficit for the Year on the Group CI & E Statement 3,395

The Group Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Comhairle's group during the reporting
period. The statement shows how these are generated and used, by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of
the Comhairle are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services. Investing activities represent the
extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to future service delivery. Cash flows
arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the
Comhairle. The Comhairle's share of the cash flows of its associates is disregarded for the purposes of this statement as the group
reserves are all unusable and cannot be used to fund services.

RECONCILIATION OF THE SINGLE ENTITY SURPLUS OR DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR TO THE GROUP SURPLUS OR
DEFICIT
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NOTE G1   DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST IN OTHER ENTITIES

NOTE G2   COMBINING ENTITIES

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

525 Gross Income 528
26 (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services 69
46 Current Assets 54

(26) Short Term Liabilities (32)
(874) Pension Liability (1,024)

The accounting period for these entities is 31 March 2014 and copies of the individual accounts are available from the Director of
Finance, Highland Council, Glenurquhart Road, Inverness, IV3 5NX.

The code of practice on Local Authority Accounting requires local authorities to consider their interest in other organisations,
including private companies and other statutory bodies. Where the interest is deemed to be material, the authority is required to
prepare a set of Group Accounts.

The Comhairle has a "controlling interest" in Sgoiltean Ura LLP (SULLP) and this company has been included in the Group
Accounts  as a subsidiary.

The accounting period for this entity is 31 March 2014 and copies of the individual accounts are available from Sgoiltean Ura LLP,
Council Offices, Sandwick Road, Stornoway, Isle of Lewis, HS1 2BW.

Following the transfer of the Police and Fire Services to the national organisations, the Comhairle now has an interest in only one
Associate Company. For the purposes of consolidation and incorporation in the Group Accounts, recognition has been made of the
Comhairle’s interest in the Highland and Western Isles Joint Valuation Board.

Copies of the accounts are available from Sgoiltean Ura LLP, Council Offices, Sandwick Road, Stornoway, Isle of Lewis, HS1
2BW.

Highland and Western Isles Joint Valuation Board administers the Rating and Council Tax valuation service and Electoral
Registration on behalf of The Highland Council and Comhairle nan Eilean Siar. Operational control of the service lies with the
Assessor who receives administrative, financial and computing support from The Highland Council. During 2013/14 the Comhairle
contributed £0.286m or 10.6% of the Board's running costs. Other than the Pension Liability, of which the Comhairle's share is
£1.024m, the Board has no other fixed assets or reserves on the Balance Sheet.

The following table gives details of the Group’s share of the Board’s finances, based on the Comhairle’s 20% share, as above.

HIGHLAND AND WESTERN ISLES JOINT VALUATION BOARD

Sgoiltean Ura LLP (SULLP) is an arms length limited liability partnership, responsible for the management of the design,
construction, facilities management and lifecycle maintenance of the schools to be built as part of the Western Isles Schools
Project. The LLP is a partnership between the Comhairle (99.99%) and Sgoiltean Ura Investments Ltd (0.01%), with the latter
being a company limited by shares having the Comhairle as sole share holder.

With the building works on the Schools Project substantially completed during 2012/13, SULLP effectively ceased trading on 31
March 2013 and consequently their were only residual transactions of minimal value through the Accounts during 2013/14. These
are not deemed material in terms of the Group. The process to novate the Schools Project contracts and transfer the assets and
liabilities of SULLP to the Comhairle was commenced at the beginning of 2013 but due to delays in the legal process, this has not
yet been finalised.
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NOTE G3   NATURE OF COMBINATION

NOTE G4   FINANCIAL IMPACT OF CONSOLIDATION

NOTE G5   COMHAIRLE SHARE OF GROUP CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

NOTE G6   GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group Accounts are prepared in accordance with the policies set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

The Contingent Liabilities of the Comhairle are detailed in Note 38. The Valuation Joint Board have not identified any contingent
liabilities.

The Comhairle is deemed to have an interest in its associates by virtue of its ability to direct operating and financial policies in
conjunction and with the consent of the other participants in the entity. Associates are accounted for using the equity method,
whereby an opening investment has been recognised in the Balance Sheet and adjusted in each year for the Comhairle's share of
the operating results. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated into the Group Accounts on a line by line basis.

The effect of including the associates and the subsidiary on the Balance Sheet is to reduce net worth by £1m, largely as a result of
inclusion of the Joint Board's share of the pension liability. Despite this, the group can be treated as a going concern, as it can raise
the funds it requires to maintain its operations.
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NOTE G7  AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR RESOURCE ALLOCATION

Note 24 gives additional information on the purpose of this note.

Directorate Income and Expenditure

2013/14
Education Social and 

Community 
Services

Technical 
Services

Development Finance and 
Corporate 

Resources

Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Total Income (9,538) (7,705) (16,288) (6,522) (13,209) (53,262)

Employee Expenses 29,175 17,671 7,233 3,235 4,267 61,581
Premises Related Expenses 4,396 1,799 1,916 504 129 8,744
Transport Related Expenses 3,510 1,181 3,532 105 35 8,363
Supplies and Services 2,388 1,808 2,855 3,870 1,902 12,823
Third Party Payments 6,326 5,609 9,321 79 376 21,711
Transfer Payments -               105 -                 -                 5,103 5,208
Support Services 6,335 2,822 2,764 1,607 3,121 16,649
Capital Charges 3,659 3,607 6,828 3,207 487 17,788
Total Expenditure 55,789 34,602 34,449 12,607 15,420 152,867

Net Expenditure 46,251 26,897 18,161 6,085 2,211 99,605

2012/13 Comparative Figures
Education Social and 

Community 
Services

Technical 
Services

Development Finance and 
Corporate 

Resources

Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Total Income (10,898) (7,910) (16,891) (5,367) (15,186) (56,252)

Employee Expenses 29,905 17,651 7,545 3,205 4,376 62,682
Premises Related Expenses 5,551 2,107 1,830 389 259 10,136
Transport Related Expenses 3,504 1,150 3,541 95 34 8,324
Supplies and Services 2,736 2,156 3,061 3,982 1,585 13,520
Third Party Payments 6,082 5,179 9,240 256 602 21,359
Transfer Payments -                   102 -                 -                 6,516 6,618
Support Services 5,968 2,530 3,263 1,758 3,436 16,955
Capital Charges 22,259 2,028 6,886 2,356 2,400 35,929
Total Expenditure 76,005 32,903 35,366 12,041 19,208 175,523

Net Expenditure 65,107 24,993 18,475 6,674 4,022 119,271

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Net expenditure in departmental analysis 119,271 99,605

2,695 2,578

2,321 3,116

(1) (69)

Cost of services in Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement 124,286 105,230

Reconciliation of Departmental Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the Comprehensive I&E Accounts

Net expenditure of services and support services not included in the analysis

Amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement not reported to management 
in the analysis

Amounts included in the analysis not included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement
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Reconciliation of Subjective Analysis

2013/14
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£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fees, Charges and Other Services Income (53,262) (2,522) -             17,242 (38,542) -              (38,542)
Interest and Investment Income -               -               -             -              -               (283) (283)
Income from Council Tax -               -               -             -              -               (9,056) (9,056)
Government Grants and Contributions -               -               -             -              -               (112,535) (112,535)
Total Income (53,262) (2,522) -                 17,242 (38,542) (121,874) (160,416)

Employee Expenses 61,581 2,402 3,116 (8,757) 58,342 -              58,342
Other Service Expenses 56,849 1,570 -             (4,179) 54,240 -              54,240
Support Service Recharges 16,649 1,128 -             (3,869) 13,908 -              13,908
Depreciation and Impairment 17,788 -               -             (506) 17,282 -              17,282
Interest Payments -               -               -             -              -               12,479 12,479
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Assets -               -               -             -              -               379 379
Total Expenditure 152,867 5,100 3,116 (17,311) 143,772 12,858 156,630

Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services 99,605 2,578 3,116 (69) 105,230 (109,016) (3,786)

2012/13 Comparative Figures
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£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fees, Charges and Other Services Income (56,252) (2,496) -             17,568 (41,180) -              (41,180)
Interest and Investment Income -               -               -             -              -               (1,452) (1,452)
Income from Council Tax -               -               -             -              -               (10,478) (10,478)
Government Grants and Contributions -               -               -             -              -               (118,135) (118,135)
Total Income (56,252) (2,496) -                 17,568 (41,180) (130,065) (171,245)

Employee Expenses 62,682 2,324 2,321 (8,748) 58,579 -              58,579
Other Service Expenses 59,957 1,701 -             (4,021) 57,637 -              57,637
Support Service Recharges 16,955 1,166 -             (4,325) 13,796 -              13,796
Depreciation and Impairment 35,929 -               -             (475) 35,454 -              35,454
Interest Payments -               -               -             -              -               12,751 12,751
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Assets -               -               -             -              -               2 2
Total Expenditure 175,523 5,191 2,321 (17,569) 165,466 12,753 178,219

Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services 119,271 2,695 2,321 (1) 124,286 (117,312) 6,974
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Comhairle nan Eilean Siar and the Accounts 
Commission for Scotland 

We certify that we have audited the financial statements of Comhairle nan Eilean Siar and its group for 
the year ended 31 March 2014 under Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.  The 
financial statements comprise the group and authority-only Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statements, Movement in Reserves Statements, Balance Sheets, and Cash-Flow Statements, the 
Council Tax Income Account, and the Non-domestic Rate Account and the related notes.  

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as 
interpreted and adapted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2013/14 (the 2013/14 Code). 

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with Part VII of the 
Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and for no other purpose.  In accordance with paragraph 125 
of the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland, we do not 
undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third 
parties. 

Respective responsibilities of the Responsible Financial Officer and auditor 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Responsible Financial Officer is 
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true 
and fair view.  Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) as required 
by the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland.  Those standards 
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements 
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.  This includes an assessment of: whether the 
accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and the body’s circumstances and have been 
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by the Responsible Financial Officer; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.  In 
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report and accounts to 
identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information 
that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge 
acquired by us in the course of performing the audit.  If we become aware of any apparent material 
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 

Opinion on financial statements 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view in accordance with applicable law and the 2013/14 Code of the state of 
the affairs of the group and of the body as at 31 March 2014 and of the income and expenditure of 
the group and the body for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, as 
interpreted and adapted by the 2013/14 Code; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 
1973 and the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003. 

Opinion on other prescribed matters 

In our opinion: 

 the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with 
The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 1985; and 

 the information given in the Explanatory Foreword for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

We are required to report to you if, in our opinion: 

 adequate accounting records have not been kept; or 

 the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not in 
agreement with the accounting records; or 

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or 

 the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government; or 

 there has been a failure to achieve a prescribed financial objective. 

 

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 

 

 

 

Nick Bennett 
For and on behalf of Scott-Moncrieff 
Exchange Place 3 
Semple Street 
Edinburgh 
EH3 8BL 

 

29 September 2014 
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